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May 5. 2023

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
on behalf of the Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Other Drugs, to enter into a Sole Source
amendment to an existing contract with New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual
Violence (VC#155510-B001), Concord, NH, to continue providing services for the prevention and
mitigation of Adverse Childhood Experiences, by increasing the price limitation by $360,000 from
$1,440,000 to $1,800.000 and by extending the completion date from June 30, 2023 to June 30,
2024, effective July 1.2023 upon Governor and Council approval. 88.89% Other Funds (Governor
Commission Funds). 11.11% Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on September 18, 2019,
(item #18). amended on April 8. 2020, (item #15), amended on June 16. 2021, (item #32) and
most recently amended on June 1, 2022, (item #17).

Funds are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2024, upon the availability and
continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget
line Items within the price limitation through the Budget Office, If needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because MOP 150 requires ail amendments to agreements
previously approved as sole source to be identified as sole source. This request is in response
to a funding directive from the Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Other Drugs (Commission),
which recommended and approved funding for the continuation of these services. In accordance
with RSA 12-J, the Department carries out the administrative functions of the Commission.

The purpose of this request is to continue providing support to children and their families
and caregivers who have experienced Adverse Childhood Experiences by collaborating with
the12 Domestic and Sexual Violence Crisis Centers to provide evidence-based and evidence-
informed programs and practices that mitigate the impact of Adverse Childhood Experiences for
children, by utilizing a whole-family approach. The services include behavioral health counseling,
group sessions with youth experiencing similar issues, mentoring, and team-building exercises.
All services are meant to increase self-efficacy and resiiience. The Contractor will also continue
to ensure the member organizations provide appropriate education and support for their families
and caregivers.
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Approximately 300 individuals will be served each State Fiscal Year through June 30,
2024.

The Centers funded through this contract, will continue to advocate for children and youth
who have witnessed traumatic events, including overdoses. The evidence-based results have
shown that when preventing and/or mitigating Adverse Childhood Experiences, it can improve
future social and health outcomes, including:

•  Increase in coping skills to address depression and/or anxiety.
•  Increase in awareness and access to services and supports to prevent or reduce ACES.
•  Increase in child-parent/caregiver bonding.

Should the Govemor and Council not authorize this request children with Adverse
Childhood Experiences and their families and caregivers may not receive adequate support,
advocacy, and education to overcome those experiences which may lead to increased incidences
of substance misuse, depression and anxiety and progression of related consequences.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Funds: Assistance Listing Number #93.959, FAIN# TI083955 and FAIN#
TI084659.

In the event that Federal Funds and Other Funds become no longer available, General
Funds will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

H""-—
Lori A. Weaver

Interim Commissioner

TKe DepQrtnwxt of Health and Human Services' Mission it to join comnxunilies and families
in providing opporluniliet for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND'HUMAN SERVICES
FISCAL DETAILS SHEET

05-95.92-920510-33820000 HEALTH & SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH.
BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL, GOVERNOR COMMISSION FUNDS (100% Other Funds)

SOF 88.89% Other Funds

Ver>dor Name:- NFI North, Inc NH Coa ADSV Vendor# 1SS510-B001

State Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Tide Job Number Current Amount ifKrease (Decrease) Revised Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Opr Svc 95028502 5360,000 SO $360,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Opr Svc 95028502 $360,000 $0 $360,000

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Opr Svc 95028502 5360,000 SO $360,000

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Opr Svc 95028502 5260,000 so 5260,000

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Opr Svc 95028502 $260,000 5260,000

Sub Total 51,340,000 $260,000 $1,600,000

05-95-92-920510-19810000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF BEHAVIORAL HEALTH,
BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL, SABG ADDITIONAL (100% Federal Funds)

SOF 5.55% Federal Funds.

State Fiscal Year Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount Increase (Decrease) Revised Amount

2023 074-500589 Grants for Public Asst and Relief 92059502 $100,000 SO $100,000

Sub Total $100,000 SO $100,000

05-95-92-920510-33800000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS; DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH,
BUREAU OF DRUB AND ALCOHOL. PREVENTION SVS (100% Federal Funds)

SOF 5.55% Federal Funds.

State Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount Increase (Decrease) Revised Amount

2024 074-500589 Grants for Public Asst and Relief 92056507 SO $100,000 $100,000

Sub Total SO $100,000 5100,000

TOTAL Sl.440,000 $360,000 $7,600,000

Governor and Council Letter Attachment

Financial Detail

Page 1 of 1
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #4

This Amendment to the Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACES) within Domestic Violence Crisis Centers
contract is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services
("State" or "Department") and New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence ("the
Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on September 18, 2019, (Item #18), as amended on April 8, 2020, (Item #15), and as amended on June
16, 2021, (Item #32), and most recently amended on June '1, 2022 (Item #17). the Contractor agreed to
perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration
of certain sums specified: and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the Contract may iDe amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement and increase the price limitation to
support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30. 2024

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$1,800,000

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

Robert W. Moore, Director.

4. Modify Exhibit B, Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 2, to read:

2. This agreement is funded by:

2.1. 11.11% Federal Funds Substance Abuse Prevention & Treatment Block Grant as awarded

on 10/01/2022 by the United States Department of Health and Human Services (HHS),
Assistance Listing Number #93.959, FAIN# TI083955 and FAIN# TI084659

2.2. 88.89% Governor's Commission on Alcohol and other Drugs Alcohol Funds.

5. Add Exhibit B-2, Amendment #4, SFY 2024 Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

(ASNew Hampshire Coalition Against
Domestic and Sexual Violence

A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials /2n?^
SS-2020-BDAS-05-ADVER-01-A04 Page 1 of 3 Date
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective July 1, 2023upon Governor and Council
approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

6/5/2023

Date

^OocuSlgned by:

S-
— FfWnQSR<M(^^4?

Name: Katja s. fox
Title:

Di rector

6/5/2023

Date

New Hampshire Coalition of Domestic and Sexual Violence
'OocuStgntd by:uocuskgftw by:

Im\a. ̂ (LAIxM
^—CQicrcotooriwia...
Name: Lyn schollett
Title:

Executive Director

New Hampshire Coalition Against
Domestic and Sexual Violence

SS-2020-BDAS-05-ADVER-01-A04

A-S-1.2

Page 2 of 3
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The preceding Amendment, having been revie\wed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

OocuSigned by:

b

-748734944941490...

Date Name; Robyn Guarino

Title:
Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

New Hampshire Coalition Against
Domestic and Sexual Violence A-S-1.2

SS-2020-BDAS-05-ADVER-01-A04 Page 3 of 3



OocuSign Envelope ID: 977C7l0A-984d-467e-AAFF.E509CFBD102E

BT-1.0 Exhibit B-2. Amendment #4 Budget
SPY 2024

SS-2020-BDAS-05-ADVER-01-A04

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Complete one budget form for each budget period.

Contractor Name: New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence

Budget Request for: Prevention & Mitigation of ACES

Budget Period July 1, 2023 through June 30. 2024 {SFY24)
Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) 0.00%

,

Line Item Program Cost - Funded by DHHS

1. Salary & Wages $0

2, Fringe Benefits $0

3. Consultants
$0

4. Equipment
indirect cost rate cannot be applied to equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1
and Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

$0

5.(3) Supplies • Educational $0

5.(b) Supplies-Lab $0

5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy $0

5.(d) Supplies - Medical $0

5.(e) Supplies Office $0

6. Travel
$0

7. Software
$0

8. (a) Other - Marketing/Communications $0

8. (b) Other - Education and Training $0

8. (c) Other - Other (specify below)
Other (please specify) $0

Other (please specify) $0

Other (please specify) $0

Other (please specify) $0

9. Subrecipient Contracts $360,000

Total Direct Costs $360,000

Total Indirect Costs $0

TOTAL $360,000

5(AS
Contractor Initials

6/5/2023

Page 1 of 1 Date
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Secrclar>' of Slaie of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that NEW HAMPSHIRE COALITION

AGAINST DOMESTIC AND SEXUAL NMOLENCE is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business

in New Hampshire on April 30. 1981. 1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of Stale's olTice have

been received and is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 63838

Certificate Number: 0006198590

SI

<5*

O

5^

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

1 hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 6th day of April A.D. 2023.

David M. Scanlan

Secrelan' of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

Suzanne Carmichael hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be conlraci signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Chairpersdn/Officer of the NH Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence .
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on November 29. 2022. at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That Lvn M. Scholiett. Executive Director
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of the NH Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence to enter into contracts or
(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

agreements with the State of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or^ departments and further is authorized to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications
thereto, which may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for thirty
(30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of New
Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the position(s)
indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any limits on the
authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire, all such
limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: June 1,2023
Signature of Elected Officer
Name: Suzanne Carmichael

Title: Chairperson, Board of Directors

Rev. 03/24/20
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ACOKD* CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/OO/YYYY)

04/21/2023

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER, THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not corifer rlqhts to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

E & S Insurance Services LLC

21 Meadowbrook Lane

P 0 Box 7425

Gilford . NH 03247-7425

CONTACT Eleanor Spinazzola

(603)293-2791 (603)293-7188

ln^iRF«;s- Eleanorspina220la@esinsurance.net
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC •

luAiiRFRA- Great American Insurance Group GAIG

INSURED

NH Coalilion Against Domestic and Sexual Violence, DBA: NHCADSV

PO Box 353

Concord NH 03302

INSURER B: Liberty Mutual Agency Corporation

INSURER C :

INSURER 0 ;

INSURER E :

INSURER F :

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES, LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

15I5r
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE

X

rom:

mss.

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

OCCURCLAIMS-MADE

GENl AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER;

POLICY JECT CH
OTHER;

LOC

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTO

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED

AUTOS ONLY X

UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS LIAB

DED

SCHEDULED

AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

X

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

X RETENTION $ 10.000
WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

ANY PROPRlETOR/PARTNER/EXECUnVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory In NH)
lives, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

I r n

H

SDSff
VWD POLICYNUMBER

MAC 5464236 22

MAC 5464236 22

UMB8234007.15

WC5-313-604577-013

POLICY EFF
IMMmoiYYYY)

05/15/2023

05/15/2023

05/15/2023

05/15/2023

POLICY EXP
(MM/DO/YYYYI

05/15/2024

05/15/2024

05/15/2024

05/15/2024

LIMITS

EACH OCCURRENCE

DALUCEl IDRLNILO
PREMISES lEa occufrencei

MED EXP (Any one person)

PERSONAL 4 ADV INJURY

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
lEaacddenil

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

BODILY INJURY (Per accident)

PROPERTY DALLAGE
(Per acddentl

EACH OCCURRENCE

AGGREGATE

PER
STATUTE

OTH
ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT

1.000,000

100,000

5,000

1,000.000

2,000,000

2,000,000

100,000

1,000.000

1,000,000

500,000

500,000

500,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached If more space Is required)

NH DepL of Health & Human Services

29 Ha2en Or

Concord NH 03301

1  :

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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NHCADSVVision and Mission

Vision

All New Hampshire communities provide safety for every person.

Mission

The New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence creates safe and
just communities through advocacy, prevention and empowerment of anyone affected
by sexual violence, domestic violence and stalking.

Note: The language below will be used in grant applications and other documents to
provide further clarification of what the Coalition does.
The statement above is the actual Mission Statement.

This mission is accomplished by the Coalition, which includes 13 independent
community-based member programs, a Board of Directors and a central staff working
together to:

•  Influence public policy on the local, state and national levels;
•  Ensure that quality services are provided to victims;
•  Promote the accountability of societal systems and communities for their

responses to sexual violence, domestic violence and stalking;
•  Prevent violence and abuse before they occur.

Approved April 2011

New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestics Sexual Violence ■ PO Box 353 • Concord, NH 03302 * 603.224.8893
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NEW HAMPSKIRE COALITION AGAINST

DOMESTIC AND SEXUAL VIOLENCE

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30,2022.and 202l

SINGLE AUDIT REPORTS

June 30,2022



DocuSign Envelope ID: 977C710A-9948-4676-AAFF-E509CFBD102E

Table of Contents

Page

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 1-2

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Statements of Financial Position, June 30, 2022 and 2021 3

Statement of Activities, Year Ended June 30, 2022
With Comparative Totals for Year Ended June 30, 2021 4

Statement of Functional Expenses, Year Ended June 30, 2022
With'Comparative Totals for Year Ended June 30, 2021 5

Statements of Cash Flows, Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 6

Notes to Financial Statements 7-16

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS AND

SINGLE AUDIT ACT REPORTS AND SCHEDULES

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT on Internal Control

Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters
Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in

Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 17-18

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT on Compliance for Each
Major Program,and on Internal Control Over Compliance
Required by the Uniform Guidance 19-20

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Section I - Summary of Auditor's Results 21
Section II - Financial Statement Findings - None 21
Section III - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs - None 21

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 22

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 23



DocuSign Envelope ID: 977C710A-9948-4676-AAFF-E509CFBD102E

ROWLEY & ASSOCIATES, P.C.

CFR'I'IFIE-:!) PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

46 N. STATE- STREET

CONCORD, NEW HAMPSHIRE0330I

MEMBER TELEPHONE (603) 228-5400
AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF FAX U (603) 226-3532 MEMBER OFTHE PRIVATE

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS COMPANIES PR/\CTICE SECTION

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors

New Hampshire Coalition
Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Concord, New Hampshire

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual
Violence (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2022, and the
related statements of activities, flinctional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to,
the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of New Hampshire
Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence as of June 30, 2022, and the changes in its net assets and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United Stales of
America.

Basis for Opinion '

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of
New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
.accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual
Violence's ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are
available to be issued.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud Is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial
likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based
on the financial statements.

-1-
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In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards,
we;

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatemenl of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining,
on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order'to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's internal control. Accordingly, no such
opinion is expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

•  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's ability to
continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified
during the audit.

Supplcmcntar)'Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code ofhederal Regulations
Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirementsfor Federal Awards, is _
presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is
the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures^ including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
•accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 5, 2022, on our
consideration of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's internal control
over financial reporting and compliance.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited the New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's 2021 financial
statements, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial statements in our report dated
September 22, 2021. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2021, is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has
been derived.

f(y

Rowley & Associates, P.C.
Concord, New Hampshire
October 5, 2022 ,
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New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Statements of Financial Position

June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021

See Independent Auditor^' Report

2022 2021

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents $  360,445 S 184,123

Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 104,331 133,856

Certificates of Deposit, Short-Tcrm -

226,062

Grants Receivable 2,261,113 2,088,047

Prepaid Expenses 25,009 23,904

Total Current Assets 2,750,898 2,655,992

PROPERTY AND EOUIPMENT

Equipment 14,654 14,654

Leasehold Improvements 61,072 61,072

75,726 75,726

Less Accumulated Depreciation (33,551) (24,170)

Total Propert)' and Equipment, Net 42,175 51,556

OTHER ASSETS

Long-term Investments 392,595 454,367

Certificates of Deposit, Long-Term 171,136 68,057

Security Deposit 6,213 6,213

Total Other Assets 569,944 528,637

Total Assets $  3,363,017 S 3,236,185

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Grants and Accounts Payable $  1,730,517. $ 1,692,068

Accrued Expenses 91,641 72,402

Total Current Liabilities 1,822,158 1,764,470

NET ASSETS

Without Donor Restrictions 1,436,528 1,337,859

With Donor Restrictions 104,331 133,856

Total Net Assets 1,540,859 1,471,715

Total Liabilities and Net Assets $  3,363,017 $ 3,236,185

Notes to Financial Statements
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New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence

Statements of Activities and Changes in Net Assets

Year Ended June 30, 2022, With Comparative Totals for Year Ended June 30, 2021

Sec Independent Auditors' Report

Net Assets Net Assets

Without Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions 2022 202!

CONTRIBUTIONS AND SUPPORT

Grant Revenue $  10,360,042 S  82,000 $  10,442,042 $  10,259,624

Contributions 165,473 - 165,473 147,285

Donated Services 4,692 - 4,692 1,496

Interest Income 3,722 - 3,722 6,910

Miscellaneous Income 12,678 - 12,678 21,640

Total Contributions and Support 10,546,607 82,000 10,628,607 10,436,955

Net Assets Released from Donor

Imposed Restrictions 1 11,525 (111,525) - -

EXPENSES

Program Services 10,321,468 - 10,321,468 10,037,272

Management and General 154,423 - 154,423 93,744

Fundraising 21,800 - 21,800 18,748

Total Expenses 10,497,691 - 10,497,691 10,149,764

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN

OPERATING NET ASSETS 160,441 (29,525) 130,916 287,191

NONOPERATING GAINS (LOSSES)

Investment Dividends 14,093 - 14,093 10,397

Unrealized and Realized Gain (Loss) (73,579) - (73,579) 78,134

Investment Fees (2,286) - (2,286) (1,911)

Net Nonopcrating Gains (Losses) (61,772) - (61,772) 86,620

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS 98,669 (29,525) 69,144 373,81 1

NET ASSETS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,337,859 133,856 1,471,715 1,097,904

NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR S  1,436,528 S  104,331 S  1,540,859 $  1,471,715

Notes to Financial Statements
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New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence

Statement of Functional Expenses

Year Ended June 30, 2022

With Comparative Totals for Year Ended June 30, 2021

See Independent Auditors* Report

• Program Management Total Total

Serx'ices & General Fundraising 2022 2021

Salaries S  1,149,926 S  101,176 S  13,592 S  1,264,694 S  1,187,973

Payroll taxes 89,346 7,861 1,053 98,260 95,076

Health and Dental Insurance 117,119 10,243 676 128,038 127,717

Other Employee Benefits 34,184 2,972 ■ - 37,156 35,774

Professional Services 71,493 6,217 - 77,710 106,976

Contract/Grant Services 8,091,952 - - 8,091,952 7,616,005

Survivor Grants 79,225 • - 79,225 127,032

Rental Assistance 211,314 • -  , 211,314 182,398

Memberships 6,010 ^ 523 - 6,533 5,995

Publications 1,771 154 - 1,925 1,778

Advertising/Public Awareness 1,616 140 - 1,756 3,144

Copying 2,688 234 - 2,922 3,637

Office Supplies 34,353 3,348 4,154 - 41,855 49,640

Postage 2,954 280 266 3,500 3,577 ■

Printing 227 1 19 1,147 1,493 .  3,851

File storage management 1,082 94 - 1,176 1,078

Maintenance & Repair 32,951 2,865 - 35,816 43,512

Rent Expense 84,466 7,345 - 91,811 88,542

Parking 7,176 624 - 7,800 7,800

Insurance 11,408 992 - 12,400 9,596

Staff Development 8,072 714 135 8,921 13,717

Travel 9,318 810 - 10,128 1,502

Telephone 51,769 4,502. - 56,271 54,433

Technology 111,806 - - 111,806 159,137

Miscellaneous Expense 12,996 1,198 777 14,971 4,310

AVAP Member Training/Education 827 - - 827 604

Direct Training 32,369 - - 32,369 46,029

Community Education 39,915 - - 39,915 143,718

Depreciation Expense 8,631 751 - 9,382 8,282

Accounting Fees 14,504 1,261 - 15,765 16,931

Total Expenses S  10,321,468 $  154,423 $  21,800 $  10,497,691 $  10,149,764

Notes to Financial Statements
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New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

See Independent Auditors' Report

2022 2021

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Increase in Net Assets

Adjustments to Reconcile Increase in Net Assets to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities

Depreciation

Net (Gain) Loss on Investments

SBA Payroll Protection Program Loan Forgiveness
(Increase) Decrease in Operating Assets;

Grants Receivable'

Prepaid Expenses

Increase (Decrease) in Operating Liabilities:

Grants and Accounts Payable

Accrued Expenses

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITES

S  69,144 S 373,811

9,383

61,772

(173,066)

(1,105)

38,447

19,239

23,814

8,282

(86,620)

(175,000)

(119,787)

(925)

171,127

(6,820)

164,068

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition of Property and Equipment
Net (Purchase) Maturity of Certificates of Deposit
Proceeds on Sales of Investments

Purchases of Investments

NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

.122,983

122,983

146,797

(23,353)

58,865

(20,058)

15,454

179,522

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, AT END OF YEAR

317,979

S 464,776

138,457

$ 317,979

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Donated Services S  4,692 $ 1,496

Notes to Financial Statements
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i^ew nampsnire coaiinon Againsi uomestic and Sexual Violence
Notes to Financial Statements

Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

NOTE A-NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Activities

The Coalition is a private, non-profit, tax-exempt organization committed to ending domestic and sexual
violence. The Coalition serves as a coordinating organization for its 12-member agency crisis centers that in
turn provide services to survivors of sexual assault, domestic violence, human trafficking, and stalking. Eleven
of the Coalition's member agencies are autonomous, private, non-profit organizations with their own mission,
structure, and board of directors; one is a university-based program. The Coalition receives 96% of its funding
from federal and state agencies and less than 1% from private fundraising.

The Vision of the Coalition is:

All New Hampshire communities provide safety for every person.

The Mission of the Coalition is:

The New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic & Sexual Violence creates safe and just communities through
advocacy, prevention and empowerment of anyone affected by sexual violence, domestic violence and stalking.

This mission is accomplished by the Coalition, which includes 12 independent community-based member
programs, a board of directors and a central staff working together to;

•  Influence public policy on the local, state and national levels;
•  Ensure that quality services are provided to victims;
•  Promote the accountability of societal systems and communities for their responses to sexual violence,

domestic violence and stalking;
•  Prevent violence and abuse before they occur.

To elaborate on the above mission and vision statements, the Coalition supports member agency staff with
specialized training, resources and technical assistance; convenes member agency staff to facilitate shared
leaming and peer support; and collects and disseminates best practices and current information. The Coalition
supports the development of new services and serves as a statewide clearinghouse and coordinating
organization related to victim services. It administers state and federal contracts that provide funding for its
member programs.

Coalition staff provide education and training to court and law enforcement officials and attorneys, and
collaborate with legal assistance organizations that provide lawyers for survivors and their families. Coalition
staff work to promote cross-system collaboration with child protective sendees and child advocacy centers to
assure safety for children exposed to or who have experienced domestic and sexual violence, and for their
parents. Coalition staff participate on numerous statewide boards and commissions to advocate for effective
responses to victims.

The Coalition's Public Affairs staff work closely with other advocacy groups, legislators and survivors to draft
legislation, organize testimony, and advocate for policy changes throughout the legislative session. The
Coalition either takes an active role in or tracks close to 150 bills each legislative session. These bills address a
wide range of issues including domestic and sexual violence; stalking; family law; divorce and child
eustody/visitation/support; reproductive rights; law enforcement and courts; privacy and personal information;
healthcare; and economic justice.

Coalition staff also provide resources and sources for responsible news media and reporting. Coalition staff
create and distribute statewide communications materials to raise awareness about sexual assault, domestic
violence, prevention and services available to victims.
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!^ew nampsnire coaiiiion Againsi uomestic and Sexual Violence
Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

NOTE A-NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued)

Nature of Activities (Continued)

The Coalition plays a key leadership role in efforts to prevent domestic and sexual violence throughout New
Hampshire. Coalition staff collaborate with state and local entities to support policies and practices to advance
effective prevention education. Coalition staff are proactive in educating the public about the causes and effects
of domestic and sexual violence and stalking and as well as services available across the state. The Coalition
has sponsored research on the prevalence of violence in New Hampshire.

The Coalition also manages several specific programs to assist its member crisis centers and the public. The
following arc three distinct programs that directly affect survivors of domestic violence, sexual violence and
stalking:

AmcriCorps Victim Assistance Program (AVAR)

The AmeriCorps Victim Assistance Program (AVAR) founded in 1994 is a program of the Coalition that
ensures that direct services are available to victims of domestic and sexual violence and stalking throughout
New Hampshire. AVAP is part of AmeriCorps, a national service program that offers opportunities to
Americans who are interested in making a substantial commitment to serve their country through national
service.

Members of the AmeriCorps Victim Assistance Program arc placed throughout New Hampshire at member
agencies, police departments, prosecutor offices, the New Hampshire Department of Corrections, and child
advocacy centers to offer support and information to victims of domestic and sexual violence and
stalking. Currently, AVAP members arc focusing their advocacy efforts on providing financial literacy and
housing ser\'ices to survivors of domestic violence, sexual assault, and stalking. AVAP members are trained in
the AllState Foundation's Moving Ahead through Financial Management curriculum which they use in onc-on-
one sessions and in financial literacy workshops focused on an array of topics from basic budgeting to checking
a credit report. AVAP members also provide information and facilitate referrals to local financial and housing
services.

Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner (SANE) Program

A Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner (SANE) is a Registered Nurse who has been specially trained to provide
comprehensive carc to sexual assault sur\'ivors, who demonstrates competency in conducting medical/forensic
examinations and who has the ability to be a witness in a sexual assault prosecution. Coalition staff are
responsible for training and working with registered SANEs and medical professionals across the state to ensure
that sexual assault victims receive consistent and professional carc during forensic exams.

The Family Violence Prevention Specialist Program

Research shows a high correlation (40-60%) between the perpetration of domestic violence and the perpetration
of child abuse and neglect in the same family. The Family Violence Prevention Specialist Program was built on
the principle that abused and pcglccted children are best served when they can remain in a safe household with
a non-violent parent.
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Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

NOTE A-NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, fcontinucd)

The Family Violence Prevention Specialist program began in 1998 as a coordinated effort between the
Coalition and the Division for Children, Youth, and Families (DCYF). Family Violence Prevention Specialists
(FVPSs) are employed by local member agencies of the Coalition, and are co-located at local DCYF District
Offices. The FVPSs are a source of assistance and training to child protective scr\'ice workers while providing
advocacy services to victims of domestic violence involved with DCYF. This program results in more effective
assistance to victims through the development of interventions that recognize the adult victim's need for support
and advocacy in order to improve safety outcomes for children.

Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the Coalition have been prepared in conformity with Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP) as applied to not-for-profits. The Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing accounting and financial reporting principles for
not-for-profits. The more significant of the FASB's generally accepted accounting principles applicable to the
Coalition, and the Coalition's conformity with such principles, arc described below. These disclosures are an
integral part of the Coalition's financial statements.

Basis of Presentation

The Coalition reports information regarding its financial position and activities according to two classes of net
assets: net assets without donor restrictions and net assets with donor restrictions.

Net assets without donor restrictions - These net assets generally result from revenues generated by
receiving contributions that have no donor restrictions, providing services, and receiving interest from
operating investments, less expenses incurred in providing program-related services raising contributions,
and performing administrative functions.

Net assets with donor restrictions - These net assets result from gifts of cash and other assets that are
received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets, either temporarily or permanently,
until the donor restriction expires, that is until the stipulated time restriction ends or the purpose of the
restriction is accomplished.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the Coalition have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting and accordingly
reflect all significant receivables, payables and other liabilities.

Grants Receivable and Promises to Give

Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to the Coalition that is, in substance,
unconditional. Contributions that are restricted by the donor are reported as increases in net assets without
donor restrictions if the restrictions expire in the fiscal year in which the contributions are recognized. All other
donor-restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor restrictions. When a restriction
expires, net assets with donor restrictions are rcclassificd to net assets without donor restrictions.

-9-
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NOTE A-NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, fcontinucdl

Contributed Services

During the Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, the value of contributed serN'ices relating to professional
services were S4,692 and SI,496, respectively. All contributed services were considered without donor
restriction and were valued at fair-market-valuc.

In addition, many individuals volunteer their time and perform a variety of tasks that assist the Coalition; these
amounts have not been recognized in the accompanying statement of activities because the criteria for
recognition as contributed services has not been met.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures.
Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Compensated Absences

Employees of the Coalition are entitled to paid vacation depending on job classification, length of services, and
other factors. The statement of financial position reflects accrued vacation earned, but unpaid as of June 30,
2022 and 2021 in the amounts of $71,602 and S58,904, respectively.

Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a functional basis in
the statements of activities and functional expenses. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the
programs and supporting services benefited based on estimates that are based on their relationship to those
activities. Those expenses include payroll and payroll related expenses and occupancy costs. Occupancy costs
are allocated based on square footage. Payroll and payroll related expenses are based on estimates of time and
effort. Other cost allocations are based on the relationship between the expenditure and the activities benefited.

Properly and Equipment

It is the Coalition's policy to capitalize property and equipment over 52,500 and all expenditures for repairs,
maintenance, renewals and betterments that prolong the useful lives of assets. Lesser amounts are expensed.
Purchased property and equipment is capitalized at cost. Donations of property and equipment are recorded as
contributions at their estimated fair value. Such donations are reported as contributions without donor restriction
unless the donor has restricted the donated asset to a specific purpose. Assets donated with explicit restrictions
regarding their use and contributions of cash that must be used to acquire property and equipment are reported
as restricted contributions. Absent donor stipulations regarding how long those donated assets must be
maintained, the Coalition reports expiration of donor restrictions when the donated or acquired assets are placed
in service as instructed by the donor. The Coalition reclassifies net assets with donor restrictions to net assets
without donor restrictions at that time. Property and equipment arc depreciated using the straight-line method.
The ranges of useful lives are as follows:

Improvements 39 Years
Equipment 3-7 Years

Depreciation expense recorded by the Coalition for the Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 was 59,383 and
58,282, respectively.

-10-
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Notes to Financial Statements
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NOTE A-NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, fcontinucd)

Income taxes

The Coalition has been notified by the internal Revenue Ser\'ice that it is exempt from federal income tax under
Section 501(c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code. The Coalition is further classified as an organization that is
not a privateifoundation under Section 509(a)(3) of the Code. The most significant tax positions of the
Coalition are its assertion that it is exempt from income taxes and its detennination of whether any amounts are
subject to unrelated business tax (UBIT). The Coalition follows the guidance of Accounting Standards
Codification (ASC) 740, Accounting for Income Taxes, related to uncertain income taxes, which prescribes a
threshold of more likely than not for recognition of tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statements of cash flows, the Coalition considers all highly liquid investments (short-term
investments such as certificates of deposits and money market accounts) with an initial maturity of three months
or less to be cash equivalents. The following table provides a reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents
reported within the statement of financial position to the sum of the corresponding amounts within the statement
of cash flows as of June 30:

2022 2021

Cash and Cash Equivalents S360,445 $184,123
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 104.331 133.856
Total $464.776 S317.979 .

Certificates of Deposit

Certificates of deposit are reported on the accompanying statement of financial position. The certificates bear
interest ranging from 1.00% to 2.27% as of June 30, 2022. Maturities range from two to three and a half years.

Segregation of Accounts

Under Title I, New Hampshire, The State and Its Government, Chapter 15 Lobbyist Section 15:1 -a, the
Coalition is required to physically and financially separate state funds from any non-state funds that may be
used for the purposes of lobbying or attempting to influence legislation, participate in political activity, or
contribute funds to any entity engaged in these activities. The Coalition has established and maintains a separate

■  bank account for this purpose. The account balances were $23,455 and $16,022 at June 30, 2022 and 2021, .
respectively. . . ■ ,

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Coalition maintains cash balances in accounts at two local banks. These accounts are insured by the
Federal Deposit insurance Corporation up to $250,000. At various times throughout the year, the Coalition may
have cash balances at the financial institution that exceeds the insured amount. Management does not believe
this concentration of cash results in a high level of risk for the Coalition. At June 30, 2022 and 2021 the
Coalition had uninsured cash balances of $134,613 and $92,848, respectively.

Advertising Costs

The Coalition follows the policy of charging the production costs of advertising to expense as incurred.
Advertising expense at June 30, 2022 and 2021 was $1,756 and $3,144 respectively.
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Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

NOTE A-NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, ̂continued)

Comparative Financial Information

■ The financial statements include certain prior-year summarized comparative information in total but not by net
asset class. Such information does not include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles. Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with the
Coalition's financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2021, from which the summarized infonnation was
derived.

Financial Instruments

The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents, certificates of deposit, grants receivable, prepaid expenses,
accounts payable and accrued expenses arc stated at carrying cost at June 30, 2022 and 2021, which
approximates fair value due to the relatively short maturity of these instruments. Other financial instruments
held at year-end arc investments, which arc stated at fair value.

Rcclassifications

Certain financial statement and note information from the prior year financial statements has been reclassified
to conform with current year presentation format.

Subsequent Event

' Management has evaluated subsequent events through October 5, 2022, the date on which the financial
statements were available to be issued to determine if any are of such significance to require disclosure.
It has been determined that no other subsequent events matching this criterion occurred during this period.

Ncwlv Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

In the year ended June 30, 2021 the Coalition adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting
Standards Update (ASU) 2018-08, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958)—Clarifying the Scope and the
Accounting Guidance for Contributions Received and Contributions Made. The FASB issued this ASU to
clarify and improve the scope and the accounting guidance for contributions received and contributions made.
The amendments in this ASU should assist entities in (1) evaluating whether transactions should be accounted
for as contributions (nonreciprocal transactions) within the scope of Topic 958, Nol-for-Profit Entities, or as
exchange (reciprocal) transactions subject to other guidance and (2) determining whether a contribution is
conditional. Analysis of the provision of these standards resulted in no significant changes in the way the
Coalition recognizes revenue and, therefore, no changes to the previously issued audited financial statements
(presented in these financial statements as comparative financial information) were required on a retrospective
basis. The adoption of this ASU did not have a significant impact on the financial statements.

In the year ended June 30, 2021 the Coalition adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting
Standards Update (ASU) 2014-09, Revenue Recognition (Topic 606)—Revenue from Contracts with
Customers. This ASU introduces a new five-step revenue recognition model in which an entity should
recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects
the eonsidcration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exehange for those goods or services. Analysis of
the provision of these standards resulted in no significant changes in the way the Coalition recognizes revenue
and, therefore, no changes to the previously issued audited financial statements (presented in these financial
statements as comparative financial information) were required on a retrospective basis. The adoption of this
ASU did not have a significant impact on the financial statements.
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NOTE A-NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, fcontinucdl

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In February, 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842). Under the new guidance, a lessee will
.  be required to recognize assets and liabilities for leases with lease terms of more than twelve months. Consistent

with current GAAP, the recognition, measurement, and presentation ofc.xpcnscs and cash flows arising from a
lease by a lessee primarily will depend on its classification as a finance or operating lease. However, unlike
current GAAP—whieh requires only capital leases to be reeognized on the statement of financial position—the
new ASU will require both types of leases to be recognized on the statement of financial position. This

standard is effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2021.

NOTE B - NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Net assets with donor restrictions consist of funds received by the Coalition, restricted as to use or time. The
restrictions are eonsidered to expire when payments are made. As of June 30, 2022 and 2021 respectively, the
net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following purpose:

Operations Support
Coalition Services

Technology Improvement
Human Trafficking Services

Economic Support to Survivors

2022 2021

. $ 20,000
- 20,000

19,225 29,751

55,575 40,574

29.531 23.531

Total S 104.331

Net assets in the amount of Si 11,525 and $80,681 were released from donor restrictions by incurring expenses
satisfying the restricted purpose during the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

NOTE C - DESCRIPTION OF LEASING ARRANGEMENTS

The Coalition presently leases office equipment under short-term operating lease agreements.

The Coalition entered a ten-year lease agreement for office space and parking spaces on March 1, 2018,
expiring in 2028. Initial annual rent was 574,556 with 4% annual escalations each year on the anniversary of
the lease term. Annual parking was $7,800 with no more than 2% annual increases. The future minimum lease
payments on this agreement as of June 30 are:

2023 $  103,011

2024 106,546
2025 110,223

2026 114,047

2027 66.092

Total $499,919

Rent expense related to the lease was $91,81 1 and $88,542 for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021
respectively. Rent paid for parking spaces totaled $7,800 during the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021,
respectively, and are included in parking expense on the statement of functional expenses.
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NOTE D - PENSION PLAN

The Coalition has a 403(b) savings plan for the benefit of its employees. The plan covers substantially all
employees after one year of scr\'ice. During their budgeting process, the Board of Directors determines the
amount to be contributed annually. Employer contributions for the Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021
totaled $27,848 and $23,089, respectively.

NOTE E - FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

In accordance with FASB ASC 820, Fair Value Measuremenis and Disclosures, the Coalition is required to
disclose certain information about its financial assets and liabilities. Fair values of assets measured on a

recurring basis at June 30 were as follows:

Quoted Prices

In Active Markets

For Identical Assets

2022 Fair Value f Level 0
$  392,595

.  " 171.136

Investments

Certificates of Deposit

Fair Value

$ 392,595
171.136

2021

Investments

Certificates of Deposit

S 563.731

$  454,367

294.119

S 748.486

- $ 563.731

$ 454,367
294.119

S 748.486

Fair values for investments were determined by reference to quoted market prices and other relevant
information generated by market ti-ansactions.

NOTE F - BOARD DESIGNATED NET ASSETS

The Coalition has net assets designated for various future needs. These funds are comprised of the following as
of June 30:

Fund for Grace

Operating Reserve

2022

$ 59,932
148.665

2021

$  56,918
148.665

NOTE G - LIOUIDITV & AVAILABILITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Coalition has a policy to structure its financial assets to be available as its general expenditures, liabilities
and other obligations come due. The Coalition's primary source of support is grants. That support is held for
the purpose of supporting the Coalition's budget. The Coalition had the following financial assets that could be
readily made available within one year to fund expenses without limitations:

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Certificates of deposit, short-term
Grants Receivable, net of

Grants Payable

Less Amounts:

With Donor Imposed Restriction

2022

S 464,776

530,596

(104.331)

2021

$ 317,979

226,062

395,979

(133.856)

-14-



DocuSign Envelope ID: 977C710A-9948-4676-AAFF-E509CFBD102E i i
i>ew nampsnire coaimon Against uomestic and Sexual Violence
Notes to Financial Statements

Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

NOTE H - INVESTMENTS

Investments are presented in the financial statements at fair-market value. Investments at June 30,2022 and
2021 are composed of the following:

2022 2021

Cost Market Cost Market

Equity Mutual Funds $  52,185 $  58,471 S  84;225 $  112,698

Mutual Funds 135,292 123,730 135,363 134,725

Money Market 32,037 32,037 22,559 22,559

Exchange traded funds 170,824 178,357 125,635 184,385

Total S  390,338 S  392,595 S  367,782 S  454,367

FASB Accounting Standards Codification Topic 820-10 Fair Value Measurements defines.fair value, requires
expanded disclosures about fair value measurements, and establishes a three-level hierarchy for fair value
measurements based on the observable inputs to the valuation of an asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. It prioritizes the inputs to the
valuation techniques used to measure fair value by giving the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurement) and the lowest priority to measurements
involving significant unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurement).

Under Topic 820-10, the three levels of the fair value hierarchy arc as follows:

Level 1 inputs arc quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the Coalition has the ability to access at the measurement date.
Level 2 inputs arc inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are either directly or
indirectly observable for the assets or liabilities.
Level 3 inputs arc unobservable inputs for the assets or liabilities.

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which a fair measurement in its entirety falls is based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety.

All investments are measured at Level 1. Inputs to the valuation methodology arc unadjusted quoted prices for
identical assets in active markets.

The individual investments contain net assets without donor restrictions. Investments in marketable equity
securities and marketable debt securities are carried at fair market value determined by "quoted market prices'
per unit (share) as of the statement of financial position date. All other investments are stated at cost. Donated
investments are recorded at the mean of the high and low price as of the date of receipt. Gains and losses on
investments arc reported as increases or decreases in net assets without donor restrictions, unless their use is
restricted by explicit donor stipulation or by law.

Spending Policy

Each fiscal year the Coalition is authorized to withdraw up to 5% of the total market value of the total portfolio
of the Fund. The amount available to be withdrawn in a fiscal year will be up to 5% of the Fund market value as
of the last business day of the fiscal third quarter of the preceding fiscal year. Only with the approval of a
majority vote of the Board of Directors, present at a meeting duly called for such purpose, may the Coalition
exceed the 5% spending cap.
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NOTE H - INVESTMENTS, (continued)

Investment Return Objectives. Risk Parameters and Strategies

The Coalition Board of Directors is responsible for developing policies that govern investment of the assets of
the Coalition. The purpose of the following Investment Policy, which is to be reviewed annually by the Finance
Committee of the Coalition arc to:

Establish the investment objectives, policies, guidelines and eligible securities relating to investments
owned or controlled by the Coalition through a third-party investment advisor.

Identify the criteria against which the investment performance ofithe Coalition's investments will be
measured.

Communicate the objectives to the Board of Directors, investment managers and funding sources that may
have involvement.

Serve as a review document to guide the ongoing oversight of the management of the Coalition's
investments;

NOTE I - LINE OF CREDIT

The Coalition has a one-year $150,000 revolving line of credit agreement with Merrimack County Savings
Bank. The credit line matures on May 20, 2023 and automatically renews annually. Interest is stated at the
Wall Street Journal prime rate plus .5%, which resulted in interest rates of 5.25% and 3.75% as of June 30,
2022 and 2021, respectively. The line of credit is secured by all business assets. There were no borrowings
against the lipc as of June 30, 2022 and 2021.

NOTE J - SBA PAYROLL PROTECTION PROGRAM LOAN

On April 23, 2020 the Coalition received approval of a loan frorn The U.S. Small Business Administration as
part of the Paycheck Protection Program in the amount of S175,000. This loan called for interest fixed at 1 %.
No payments were required for six months from the date of the loan. This note was to mature two years from
the date of first disbursement of the loan.

The loan was forgiven in full under the provisions of Section 1 106 of the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and
Economic Security Act (CARES Act) (P.L. 1 16-136) on February 26, 2021. The revenue is included in grant
revenue in the statement of activities and changes in net assets for the year ended June 30, 2021.

NOTE K - RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES - COVID-19

As a result of the spread of the COVJD-19 coronavirus, economic uncertainties have arisen which may
negatively impact future financial performance. The potential impact of these uncertainties is unknown and
cannot be estimated at the present time.
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS COMPANIES PRACTICE SECTION

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors

New Hampshire Coalition
Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Concord, New Hampshire

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of New Hampshire Coalition Against
Domestic and Sexual Violence (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as
of June 30, 2022, and the related statements of activities, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related
notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 5, 2022.

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered New Hampshire Coalition
Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis
for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing.our
opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's internal control. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's
internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of perfonning their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements, on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatemcnt of the entity's financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration ofintemal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies
may exist that were not identified.
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As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and
Sexual Violence's financial statements are free from material misstatcment, we performed tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliancc with
which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliancc or other matters that are required to be
reported under Governmenl Auditing Standards.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the organization's internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit perfonned in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering the organization's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this
communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

fey

Rowley & Associates, P.C.
Concord, New Hampshire
October 5, 2022
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/  INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM

AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Board of Directors

New Hampshire Coalition
Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Concord, New Hampshire

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We have audited New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's compliance with the types of
compliance requirements identified as subject to audit in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct
and material effect on each of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's major federal
programs for the year ended June 30, 2022. New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's
major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs.

In our opinion, New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence complied, in all material respects,
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its
major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2022.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted bur audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations
Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Unifonn Guidance are further described in
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be independent of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence and to meet
our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on
compliance for each major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of New Hampshire
Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of efTective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws,
statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to New Hampshire Coalition
Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's federal programs.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the compliance
requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion oh New Hampshire
Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high
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level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with generally accepted auditing standards. Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always
detect material noncompliance when-it.exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud
is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to
above is considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would
influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about New Hampshire Coalition
Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's compliance with the requirements of each major federal program as a
whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards,
and the Uniform Guidance, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism,throughout the audit.
•  Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design and

perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis,
evidence regarding New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's compliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances.

•  Obtain an understanding of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Se.xual Violence's internal
control over compliance relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform
Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of New Hampshire Coalition
Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal control over
compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A
material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a
material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in
internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over
compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.
The purpose of this report on internal control over.compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance.
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Rowley & Associates, P.C.
Concord, New Hampshire
October 5, 2022
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SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS

1. The auditor's report expresses an unmodified opinion on the financial statements of the New Hampshire
Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence.

2. No' reportable conditions relating to the audit of the financial statements are reported in the Independent
Auditor's Report. No material weaknesses are reported.

3. No instances of noneompliance material to the financial statements of New Hampshire Coalition Against
Domestic and Sexual Violence, which would be required to be reported in accordance with Governmeni
Auditing Standards, were disclosed during the audit.

4. No significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award programs are reported in the
Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and on Internal Control Over
Compliance Required by the Unifonn Guidance. No Material weaknesses are reported.

5. The auditor's report on compliance for the major federal award programs for New Hampshire Coalition
Against Domestic and Sexual Violence expresses an unmodified opinion on all major federal programs.

6. Audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR section 200.516(a) are reported in
this Schedule.

7. The programs tested as a major program were:

Victims of Crime Act 16.575

Family Violence Prevention Service Act 93.671

8. the threshold for distinguishing Types A and B Programs was: $750,000.

9. The New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence was determined to be a low-risk
auditee.

SECTION II - FINDINGS: FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT

No matters were reported.

SECTION 111 - FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS: FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT

No matters were reported.
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New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Federal CFDA/ Pass-Through

Assistance Entity Passed

Listing Identifying Through to Federal

Program Title' Number Number Subrecipients Expenditures

US Dcnartment of Hnnsinp and Urban Devclonment:

Pass-Through Programs from State of N'i l Department of I IUS:
Emcrgeney Solutions Grant Program 14.231 S  528:400 S  528,400

Continuum of Care Program . •  14.267 102-500731 224,154 235,447

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 752,554 763,847

U.S. Deoartment of Justice:

Direct Program - Violence Against Women Act of 2000 16.556 -
257,837

Pass-Through Programs from State of NH Department of Justice:
VAWA.SASP 16.017 2021SASP0I 373,856 373,856

OVC Human TrafTtcking 16.320 -
116,289

VOCA, Data Projects Coordinator 16.575 -
24,137

VOCA, Competitive 16.575 2022VOC72 231,088 244,488

VOCA, PMC Subcontracts 16.575 2022VOC31 3,239.899 3,717,342

Subtotal 3,470,987 3,985,967

VAWA, STOP 16.588 2022VAWI6 -
158,854

Total Pass-Through Programs 3,844,843 4,634,966

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 3,844,843 4,892,803

U S. Denartment of Health and Human Serx'ices:

Direct Program - Family Violence Prevention Scmces Act 93.591 -
359,838

Direct Program - Family Violence Prevention Serx'ices Act - Covid-l9 93.591 -
7,793

Subtotal -
367,631

Pass-Through Programs from State of NH Department of HHS:
Sexual Violence Prevention 93.136 102-500731 219,735 310,170

Family Violence Prevention Serx'ices Act 93.671 155510 BOOl 1,102,895 1,182,781

Family Violence Prevention Ser\'ices Act - Covid-19 93.671 155510 BOOl 23,458 23,458

Subtotal 1,126,353 1,206,239

Total Pass-Through Programs 1,346,088 -  1,516,409

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES 1,346,088 1,884,040

Corrxiration for National & Community Sc^'iccs:

Pass-Through from Volunteer NH!
AmeriCorps Victim Assist Program ' 94.006 •

229,691

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS S 5,943,485 S  7,770,381
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NOTE A - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the federal award
activity of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence under programs of the federal
government for the year ended June 30, 2022. The infonnation in this Schedule is presented in accordance with
the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code ofFederal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements,
Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Unifonn Guidance). Because the Schedule
presents only a selected portion of the operations of New Hampshire Coalition Againsi Domestic and Sexual
Violence, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of
New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence

NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1. Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures are
recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, Cost Principles for Non-profit
Organizations, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

2. Pass-through entity identifying numbers are presented where available.

NOTE C - SUBRECIPIENTS

The New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence provide federal awards to subrecipients
as follows;

Federal CFDA/

Program Title Assistance Listing U Amount Provided

Emergency Solutions Grant Program 14.231 $ 528,400

Rapid Rc-Housing Program 14.267 224,154

Sexual Assault Services Program 16.017 373,856

Victims of Crime Act 16.575 3,470,987

Sexual Violence Prevention 93.136 219,735

Family Violence Prevention Services Act 93.671 1.126.353

% 5.943.485

NOTE D - INDIRECT COST RATE

The New Hampshire Coalition Againsi Domestic and Sexual Violence has not elected to use the 10% de
minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under the Unifonn Guidance.
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Chairperson

Suzanne Carmichael

Mentor Program Coordinator. John

Stark Regional High School

Deb Haynes-Kenney

Executive Director. Response

Vice Chair

Tina Smith

Nurse, Concord Pediatrics

Treasurer

Susan Nooney

Accountant, Susan Nooney CPA

Clerk

Hilary Holmes Rheaume

Associate, Bernstein, Shur. Sawyer &
Nelson, P.A.

Ally Goddard Richardson

Managing Director. Dartmouth College

Brian Harlow

Community Activist

Carlos Jauhola-Straight
Pastor, First Congregational Church of

Pelham.

John Gasaway

Prosecutor. State of NH, Department of

Safety
I

Julia Williams

Director, Mass General Brigham

Michael Hauptly-Pierce

Commercial Water Specialist, Secondwind
Water Systems, Inc.

Sarah Gagnon

VP of Clinical Operations. Riverbend
Community Mental Health

Shauna Foster

Executive Director, New Beginnings
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PAMELA ENGLISH

EMPLOYMENT

New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence, Concord, NH

Administrative and Finance Director, 2006 - Present

•  Continued all duties of Business and Grants Manager, including all Financial Management of the
NHCADSV.

•  Assist with grant writing.

•  Administration management including maintaining insurance coverage for organization and employees
and administering employee benefits.

•  Management of information technology systems.

•  Facilities Manager for building at 4 South State Street, Concord.

Business and Grants Manager, 1995-2006

•  Maintain alt financial records, including payroll and employee benefits.

•  Manage state and federal funding programs and provide technical assistance to subcontractors.

•  Managed conversion to new computerized Fund Accounting system.

•  Hire and manage Bookkeeper and Office Coordinator.

•  Act as Facilities Manager for building at 4 South State Street, Concord.

Administrative Assistant, 1993 - 1995

•  Assisted two Co-Directors and a trainer with their administrative needs.

•  Responsible for coordination and management of office.

•  Maintain accurate financial records using,full charge computerized bookkeeping system.

•  Insured compliance with all state and federal reporting requirements, including 941, state UC, W-2,
1099.

Self Employed Child care provider and Nanny, Concord, NH, 1988- 1993

Law Offices, Concord, NH, 1985 - 1988

Legal Secretary

•  Daniel D. Crean, Esq. and Charles H. Morang, Esq., Municipal and Business Law Practices
•  Robert K. Mekeel, Esq. Labor, Criminal, Worker's Comp. and General Law Practice

COMPUTER EXPERIENCE AND SKILLS

•  Fund Accounting Software ^
Spreadsheets
Microsoft Office Word and Excel

Outlook and Outlook Express

•  Effective supervisory management
Excellent organizational skills
Detail oriented

Ability to manage multiple, simultaneous deadlines
Working knowledge of federal and state grant compliance requirements
Working knowledge of computer management
Computerized accounting management
Experience and knowledge of New Hampshire employment law

EDUCATION
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NH Technical Institute, Concord, NH

. Selected Accounting and Management Courses

Merritt Davis Business College, Eugene, OR
Legal Secretarial Degree II

COMMUNITY ACTIVITIES

2002-Present Northwood Elementary School PTA, President for 2003/2005 school years
1990-2002 ' Dewey/K-imball School PTA
1983-1984 President, Merrimack County Legal Secretaries Association

REFERENCES

Available upon request.
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Joi Smith

SKILLS SUMMARY:

Highly creative and enthusiastic community builder
Excellent communication and organizational skills
Aptitude for technology and innovation
Activist and passionate participant In the arts community

EMPLOYMENT HISTORY:

NH Coalition Against Domestic & Sexual Violence - Program Director August 2020 - Present
Concord, NH

Provide leadership and oversight in the development and administration of member services, training, and technical assistance,
statewide programs, and other special projects of the NHCADSV in line with its mission, strategic plan, and community needs. .
Recruit, train and supervise program staff, as they implement and sustain initiatives of the NHCADSV. Oversee training and
technical assistance efforts of the NHCADSV. Develop and implement evaluation tools for statewide programs and special
projects. Provide high-level management and support to the AmeriCorps Victim Assistance Program (AVAP.) Assist with grant
writing in response to federal, state, and private funding opportunities. Serve as liaison to the NHCADSV's 12 member programs
by identifying needed resources and training to improve direct service delivery.'Serve on statewide committees to assist in
developing state protocols and improving multi-disciplinary response to domestic violence, sexual violence, stalking, and human
trafficking.

HAVEN - Manager of Client Services July 2015 - August 2020
Portsmouth, NH

Managed HAVEN's domestic and sexual violence client services program and supervised direct service staff. Served as the
Agency's AmeriCorps Victim Assistance Program Advocate Coordinator and Internship Coordinator. Developed, organized, and.
facilitated in-service and ongoing training prograrhs for all direct service staff, interns, and volunteers. Developed and
maintained an ongoing effective client services program using best practices for survivors of domestic and sexual violence
through a 24 - hour hotline, office walk-ins, and accompaniments to hospitals, police stations, courts, and child advocacy
centers. Engaged and maintained collaborative relationships with victim service community partners at the local and state
levels.

Sexual Assault Support Services (SASS) September 2011 - July 2015
Volunteer Advocate (Sept. 2011-July 2012) | Night Supervisor (July 2012- Sept.2013} j Client Services Coordinator (Sept. 2013 - July 2015)
Portsmouth, NH

Provided supportive services and referrals to victims and survivors of sexual violence through the 24 - hour hotline, hospital and
police accompaniments, and peer support groups. Scheduled and coordinated SASS's 24-hour services coverage. Provided
supervision to direct service staff and volunteer advocates. Developed and implemented training and programming for trauma-
informed sexual assault/abuse support services.

COMMITTEES & TASK FORCES:

NH Attorney General's Task Force on Child Abuse & Neglect 2020 - Present
NH Campus Consortium Against Sexual and Interpersonal Violence 2020 - Present

NH Child Fatality Review Corhmittee 2020-Present
NH Human Trafficking Collaborative Task Force 2017 - Present
NH Incapacitated & Vulnerable Adult Fatality Review Committee 2020 - Present
NH Lethality Assessment Program (LAP) Steering Committee 2018 - Present
NH Sexual Assault 81 Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner (SANE) Advisory Board 2017 - Present
NH Task Force on Sexual Misconduct at Institutions of Higher Education 2020 • Present
NH Wellness & Primary Prevention Council 2020- 2022

Child Advocacy Center of Rocklngham County MDT Advisory Board 2019 - 2020
Strafford County Child Advocacy Center Advisory Board 2017 - 2020
Strafford County Sexual Assault Resource Team (SART) 2016 - 2020
Rocklngham County Sexual Assault Resource Team (SART) 2015 - 2020
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Joi Smith

OTHER RELATED EXPERIENCE:

Back Alley Productions - Founder/Director/Produccr 2008-Present
A cutting-edge, independent theater company focused on executing a clear, strong vision for quality theater programs, and
maintaining inclusivity, integrity, and respect for all involved with each production.

Players' Ring Board of Directors - Board Member/Producer Liaison/Marketing Chair 2013 - 2019
Portsmouth, NH

A non-profit, groundbreaking, black box theater whose mission is to provide an environment where artists can thrive, grow,
take risks and make daring choices. Responsible for training, coordinating, scheduling, supporting, and mentoring
more than 25 production companies throughout the season, as well as planning and executing any fundraising efforts and
events for the theater. Manage and develop content for marketing, social media, and bi-weekly newsletters promoting each
production and event. Organize and facilitate community volunteer projects aimed at improving the theater space.

V-Day Portsmouth NH/V-Day Rochester NH/One Bjlllon Rising - OrgamzerlProducerlDirecior 2001-2015
Organized, produced, and directed a yearly theatrical event focused on raising awareness and funds to end violence against
women. Organized all aspects of these events, from casting and staging, fundraising and securing donations, and creating
marketing content for the promotion of the events. Fostered collaboration with local beneficiaries and other community V-Day
organizers to cross-promote causes and events and ensure consistent messaging. Completing required reports and reconciled
budgets at the end of each event.

ADDITIONAL SKILLS:

Training & Group Facilitation: Experienced iri developing and facilitating ongoing required training for staff, and community
partner professionals, and developing and facilitating survivor support groups.
Technology: Proficient in both MAC and PC platforms. Expertise in Microsoft Office programs & Office 365, Adobe Acrobat,
Adobe Photoshop, QuickBooks, and online project management and file share systems such as Freedcamp, Basecamp, and
Dropbox, as welt as Google docs.
Marketing: Additional expertise 8t aptitude for website design, social media management, and email marketing. Skilled at
copywriting, editing, and basic graphic design.

AWARDS & HONORS:

2019 Everyday Hero Award

Granite State Children's Alliance & the Stafford County Child Advocacy Center
2015 Champion for Children
The Child Advocacy Center of Rockingham County
2014 Saving Lives 8( Creating Futures Award

A Safe Place Portsmouth, NH
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Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACES) within Domestic Violence Crisis Centers
NH COALITION AGAINST DOMESTIC AND SEXUAL VIOLENCE

Kcv Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from this
Contract

Amount Paid from this

Contract

Joi Smith Program Director Zero Zero

Pamela English Administrative & Finance Director Zero Zero

■
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

139 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271.9544 1-800452-3345 EiL 9544

Fix: 60i3-27l-4332 TDD Acccu: 1-800-735-2964 imw.dblu.oh.Kev

May 2, 2022

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
on behalf of the Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Other Drugs, to amend an existing
contract with the New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence (VC#155510^
B001). Concord. NH. to continue providing services for the prevention and mitigation of Adverse
Childhood Experiences, by increasing the price limitation by $360,000 from $1,060,000 to
$1,440,000 and by extending the completion date from June 30, 2022, to June 30,2023, effective
July 1, 2022 or upon Govemorand Council approval, whichever is later. 7% Federal Funds. 93^
Other Funds (Govemor's Commission Funds).

This agreement was originally approved by the Governor and Executive Council on
September 18, 2019 (Item #18), and amended on April 8, 2020, (Item #15), and most recently
amended on June 16, 2021, (Item #32).

Funds are available In the following account for State Fiscal Years 2023. with the authority
to.adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years
through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.
05-95-92-920510-33820000 HEAL TH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS; DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEAL TH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND
ALCOHOL, GOVERNOR COMMISSION FUNDS (100% Other Funds)

State
Fiscal
Year

Class/
Account

Class Title
Job

Number
Current
Budget

Increased
(Decreased)

Amount

Revised
Budget

2020 102/500731
Contracts for

Opr Svc 92058502
$360,000 $0 $360,000

2021 102/500731
Contracts for

Opr Svc 92058502
$360,000 $0 $360,000

2022 102/500731
Contracts for

Opr Svc 62058502
$360,000 $0 $360,000

2023 102/500731
Contracts for

Opr Svc
92058502

$0 $260,000 $260,000

Subtotal $1,080,000 $260,000 $1,340,000

Tht Deporlmtnl of Htolth and Human Service*'Mitsion it la Join communiliet and familia
tn pntvidift^ opportuhilies far eiii*tt\t la o(/iievt hcolt/i and independence.
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05-95-92-920510-19810000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUO AND
ALCOHOL, SABG ADDITIONAL

State

Fiscal
Year

Class/
Accourrt

Class Title
Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decressed)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2023 074-500585

Grants for
Public Asst

and Relief

92059502
$0 $100,000 $100,000

Subtotal $0 $100,000 $100,000

Total $1,080,000 $360,000 1,440,000

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to continue programming and strategies to support children
and their families wtio have experienced Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACEs), including,
being victims of or otherwise exposed to trauma. The Department is seeking to extend the contract
beyond the completion date and available reneNval options In response to a funding directive from
the Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Other Dargs. In accordance with RSA 12-J, the
Department carries out the administrative functions of the Commission.

Approximately 6375 individuals will be served July 1, 2022. through June 30.2023.

The Contractor wili continue to subcontract with 12 Domestic and Sexual Violence Crisis
Centers to provide evidence-based or evidence-informed programs and practices that mitigate
the impact d ACEs on children, which have been shown to have a significant impact on future
victimization and perpetration of violence and lifelong health implications. Individuals experiencing
adverse experiences are also at a significantly higher risk for developing substance use disorders
and experiencing depression and/or anxiety.

These services and programs provide support for children up to 18 years of age who have
witnessed or been victims of trauma, as well as their families and caregivers. The types of
supports offered include child advocacy, parent-child mentors, peer mentoring, child and parent
therapy, child and parent education, support groups, curriculum based programs, and child
enrichment and development programming.

To date, the CADSV has served 6,252 children through child advocacy services and
prevention education sessions. CADSV has strategically developed partnerships to strengthen
capacity and build sustainability. This past year, one member agency partnered with the Concord
School District to provide on-site services with the hopes of expanding to more school districts.
Additionally. CADSV artd its member agencies are building partnerships with organizations
already serving children to increase access arxl awareness of CADSV services this Includes work
with the Adverse Childhood Experiences Response Team mobile units in Manchester and
Nashua.

The services made available through this contract Include staff In the 12 Domestic and
Sexual Violence Crisis Centers to advocate for and support children and youth who have
witnessed traumatic events, including overdoses. Research has shwm that preventing and/or
mitigating ACEs can improve future social and health outcomes, Including:
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•  Increasing coping skills to address depression and/or anxiety:

•  Increasing awareness of and access to sennces and supports to prevent or reduce ACEs;
and

•  Increasing child-parerrt/caregiver bonding.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, children with ACEs and their
families may not receive adequate support, advocacy, and education to overcome tho»
experiences which may lead to increased incidences of substance misuse, depression, anxiety
and other behavioral health issues.

Area served: Statewide

In the event that the Other Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully sutxnitted.

Lori A. Shibinette
Commissioner
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #3

This Amendment to the Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACES) within Domestic Violence Crisis Centers
contract is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services
("State" or "Department") and New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence ("the
Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on September 18, 2019, (Item #18), as amended on April 8. 2020, (Item #15). and as amended on June
16, 2021, (Item #32), the Contractor agreed to perform certain sen/ices based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and
WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions. Paragraph 18, the Contract may amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and
WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30. 2023

2. Form P-37, General Provisions. Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$1,440,000

3. Modify Exhibit B, Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 8 to read:
8. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed to

dhhs.invoicesforcontracts@dhhs.nh.Qov. or invoices may be mailed to:

Financial Manager
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

4. Add Exhibit B-1, Amendment #3 Budget. SFY 2023, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

New Hampshire Coalllion Against L
Domestic and Sexual Violence A-S-1.2 Contractor Initials
SS-2020-BDAS-05-ADVER-01-A03 Page 1 of 3 Dal®
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective July 1, 2022, subject to Governor and Council
approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set.their hands as of the date Vk^ritten below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

5/4/2022

Date

OoevSlyied by;

A S-
<804C»»4«a.

Namei'^atJ^ s. fox
Title: oi rector

S/4/2022

Date

New Hampshire Coalition of Domestic and Sexual Violence
>(>o«M3ieA*« by:

G
Namei'-y" schoiiett
Title: Executive Director

New Hampshire Coalition of
Domestic and Sexual Violence

SS-2020-BOAS^5-ADVER-01 -A03

A-S-1.2

Page 2 of 3 '
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

"OocKjIgntd by;

S/6/2022 I
Date Name-^^otyn'Guarino

Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Govemor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on; (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

New Hampshire Coalition of
Domestic and Sexual Violence A-S-1.2

SS-2020-BDAS-05-ADVER-01 -AOS Page 3 of 3
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BT-1.0 Exhibit B'l. Amendment *3 Budget
SFY2023

SS-2020-BOAS-05-AOVER-01-A03

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
CompM* on9 budget form for 9ach budget period.

Contractor Name' Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic end Sexual Violence ■

Budget Request for: Prevention & Mitigation of ACES

Budget Period July 1, 2022 through June 30. 2023 (SFY23)

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable)0.00%

Line .Item Program Cost ' Funded by DHHS.

1. Salary & Wages
.  $0

2. Fringe Benefits
$0

3. Consultants
$0

4. Equipment
Indirect cost rate cannot ba applhd to aqulpmant costs per 2 CFR 200.1

$0

5.(8) Supplies • Educational $0

5.(b) Supplies • Lab •  ■ $0

5 (r) Supplies - Pharmacv so

5.(d) Supplies • Medical •so

5.(e) Supplies Office so

6. Travel
so

7. Software
■  so

B fa> Other • Marketina/Communlcations so

8. (b) Other • Education and Training •  • • $0

8. (c) Other ■ Other (specify below)

Other (olease specify) . • " , ; . so

Other (please specify) • so

Other (please specify) •  • so

Other (please specify)
■  so

9. Subredoient Contracts
S360.000

Total Direct Costs $360,000

Total Indirect Costs ■  ■ ■ - SO

TOTAL $360,000

Contractor Initials

[i
Page 1 of 1 Dale

5/4/2022
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state of new HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF.HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

(jOVERNOR'S COMMl^fpN on alcohol A OTHER DRUGS

IJ9 PLEASANT STREET.CONCORD. NH 03301
603-37MS64 l-m>S04-0909

F«1: 603-271:4105 TOD A<cm: l-«60-73$-2964 *«n\.dhh*.nh.BOvMcte«/WM

June 10. 2021

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House
Coricbrd, New Hampshire 03301

rREQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division for Behavioral Health,
on behalf of the Goverhor's Cdmrnissiw on Alcohol and Other Drugs, to amer^ an existing
cpfitracl with the Hampshire Coalition Against Dorhestic and^xual yiolence (VC# 155510-
B001); Concord, NH to provide services for pre^ntion and mjtigation .of Adverse Chijdhood
^periehces, by exerdsing a contract feneWai option by Increasing the. price limilatioh by
$360,000 from $720,006 to $1 .OSO.OOO and extending the completion date from June 30,2021 to
June 30. 2022 effective upon Governor a.hd Council apjjrovai. 100% Other Funds .(Governorie
Commission ifunds).

The onQ'hal contract was approved by Governor and Council on September 18. 2019.
Iterri #18 and most recently amended with Governor and Council approval on April 8.-2020. itenri
'#15.

Funds are anticipated to be available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2022.
uwh the availabill^ and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the
aufhority tp adjUst budget line items vi/ilhin the price limitation and encumbrances between stale
fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and jusiifled.
65-95-92-920516-33e20000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT .OF HEALTH ANP
HUMAN SyS. HHS: DIVISION-FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG.AND
ALCOHbli governor COMMISSION FUNDS (100% Other Funds)

State
Fiscai
Year

Class/
Account

Class Title
Job

Nurhber

Current

Budget

Increased
(Decreased)
Amount

Revised
Budgdt

2020 102/500731
Contracts for
Prog Svc

92058502
$360,000 $0 $360,000

2021 -102/500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
92058502

SMO.OOO SO $360,000

2022 102/500731
Cdfitracts for

Prog Svc-
92058502

$0 $360,000 $360,000

Total $720,000 $360,000 $1,080,000

nt 0*pertmtul olileahh qnd Humai{ Struiixt-MJuion it UtJoinewnmuniiitteudfomtUn-^
in proiitdhi^ ciliuns to och'uvo hnlth ond indtpfiidinet.
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EXPLAMAT\ON

Thfi purpose of this, f^uesl is to continue pr^ramrhjng and practices (o support children
and families and car^lvefs Who haw expwie'nc^ ChBdhood Btpdnen^. The
Governor's Corhmteslon 'on.AJoohol and other Drugs approv^ funding on April 15.2020 for the

Hampshire against! Domestic and Sexual Violence arid Its rnemb^ agencies to
Irnplemeht programming drid practices to support ctiiidren end their farnilles/careglver who have
■experierwed Adverse Childhood Experiertces. In accordance with RSA 12-J. the Department
Games out the administrative functions of the Commission.

Approxlmalefy 350 ̂ IWren Will l)e served from JUly 1, 2021 to June 30,20.22.
The Cohtractor.wiil continue to subcontract with twelve (12) Domestic and Sexual Violence

Crisi.s '.Centers to provide evidence-based or ev^ence^nformed programs arid practice that
mitigate the Impact of.Adverse Childhood Experiences for children, by utilizing a whole-famBy
approach! THie Contractor'wil erasure the member organizations provide appropriate education
arid support for .ch.lidren ard their families and caregivers;

The. services and .programs provide support for children up to eighteen (18) years of age
vWto have yritrtessed or bien yictirT^ of traurna, as weD as th^ famiVies and ca.regjveris. The types
of 5|4)ports.offered Include cfuld advocacy, parent-cfiild meritors, peer mentoring, child and parent
therapy, suj^ort groups, curriculum based programs, arxl child enrichn^t and development
prdgrarrinrilng. The poat Is to reduce the impact on children who have wthes^d srid/or been
victim's 'of trauma arid the tricldences of future trauma that may be prevented through to
the^ services. >

'Childhood experlendes .have been shown to have -a signlficarit impact on future
victimization and perpetration of vidlence and lifelong health irhpiicatlons. Individuals experiencing
Adverse Childhood B^riences are also at a. significant risk for substarice use disorders.

The services .made available through this contract include staffing In the twelve (1.2)
Domestic and Sexual Volence Crisis Ce.riters fp advocate for children arid youth who have
vyitnessed traumatic events. Including overdoses. Research has shown trial When pfevenllrvg
end/or mitigating Advefse'Chijdhodd Expeiiencesvoutcornes can improve future social .arid hea.lih
outcomes, deluding:

Increase In coplnig skills to address depression and/of anxiety.
•  Increase in awareness arid access to seryice.s and supports'to prevent or reduce

ACES

•  Increase In chlid-parent/caregiver bonding.
As referenced In Exhibit C-1. RoNrisions to StandaVd Contract Language, Section 2,

■Renewal of the origiina.l contract, the parties have trie option to extend the agreement for up to
(vyo (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available fu.r^irig,
agreement of the parties and Governor and" Council appfbval. The De'partmerit Is' exercising its.
option'to renew services for or>e (1) of the one (1) year available.

•^ould the GoVeriidr arid Council riot authorize, this reguesl,' children .vrith A.dverse
Childhood .Expeiierices ar>d their fariillies and caregivers may not .receive adequate support,
advowcy. and education to overcome those experiences.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Funds: -100% Other .Funds (Governor Cqrnmlssioner Funds).
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In the event that the Other Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment U2

This 2^ Amendment to the Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACES) within Domestic Violence Crisis
Centers contract is by and between the Stale of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human
Services ("State" or "Department") and the New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual
Violence, ("the Contractor"), a nonprofit corporation with a place of business at PO Box 353, Concord,
New Hampshire, 03301.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on September 18. 2019 (Item #18), as amended on April 8. 2020, (Item #15), the Contractor agreed to
perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and
in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph IB, and Exhibit C-l, Revisions to
Standard' Contract Language, Paragraph #2. Renewal, the Contract may be amended upon written
agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and
WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants arid conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions. Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

6/30/2022

2. FormP-37.General Provisions. Block 1.8. Price Limitation, to read:

$1,080,000

SS-2020-BDAS-OS-AOVER-01-A02 New Hampshire Coelilioo Ageinsl

Oomaslic and Sexual Violerxas Initials

A-S-1.0 Page 1 of 3 Dflio _

(i
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendrnents not modified by this Amer>dnr>ent remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective Juiy 1. 2021 subject to Governor and Executive
Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parlies have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

6/1/2021

Date

— OMutlDAM kr-

lUtjA F«<

Nam-^'^Wiri^ox
Title; o1 rector

5/31/2021

Dale

New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual
VipleracdBk^k,;

NameHyA'yr'Vhollett
Title: Executive Director

SS-2020-BOAS-05-AOVeR-01-A02

■ A-SO.O

New Hampshire Coalilion Against
Oomeslic and Sexual Violence

Page 2 of 3
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by (his office. Is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

6/1/2021 I
Date Pinos

Title: Attorney
/

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor, and Executive Council of
the Stale of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: {date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

SS-2020-BOAS-05-ADVER-D1-A02 New Hampshire Coalilion Against
Domestic end Sexual Violence

A-S-1.0 Page 3 Of 3
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STATE OF NtW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

COVERTiOR'S COMMISSION ON ALCOHOL & OTHER DRUGS

129 PtEASANT STREET. CONCORD. NH 03301
M3-27I.9S64 1400-804-0909

Fi*: 603-2714105 TDDAcmi: I400-735-2964 «rwrw.dhhi.nh.|Ov/dcbCt'btftl

March 16.2020

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council.

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division for Behavioral Health,
on behalf of the Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Other Drugs, to exercise a renewal,
option to an existing sole source contract with the New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic
and Sexual Violence (Vendor# 155.510-B001). 100 North Main Street. Suite 300, Concord. NH
03301 to-provide services for prevention and mitigation of Adverse Childhood Experiences
(ACEs) by increasing the price limitation by $360,000 from $360,000 to $720,000. and by
extending the completion date from June 30. 2020 to June 30. 2021. effective upon Governor
and Executive Council approval. 100% Other Funds (Governor's Commission-funds).

This agreement was originally approved by the Governor and Executive Council on
September 18. 2019 (Item #18).

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Years 2020 and 2021, with
authority to adjust amounts within the price limitation and adjust encumbrances between State
Fiscal Years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.
05.95-90-920510-3382 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL,

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

2020
102-

500731

Contracts for Prog
Svc

92058502 $360,000 $0 $360,000

2021
102-

500731

Contracts for Prog
Svc

92058502 $0 $360,000 $360,000

Total $0 $0 $720,000
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EXPLANATION

This request is sole sblirce because on January 10. 2020 the Governor's Commission
on Alcohol and other Drugs approved funding for the New Hampshire Coalition against Domestic
and Sexual Violence and its member agencies. The purpose of the additional funding included
in this request is to continue programming and practices to support children and their families
and caregivers who have experienced Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACEs). In accordance
with RSA 12-J, the Department carries out the administrative functions of the Commission.

j Approximately 350 children will be served July, 2020 to June 30. 2021.
The original agreement, included language in Exhibit C-1, Revisions to Standard Contract

Language. Section 2, Renewal, that allov^ the Department to renew the contract for up to two
(2) years, subject to the continued availability of funding, satisfactory performance of service,
the parties* written authorization, and approval from the Governor and Executive Council. The
parties are in agreement with renewing services for one (1) of the two (2) years at this time.

The Qoniractof will continue to subcontract with twelve (12) Domestic and Sexual
Violence Crisis Centers to provide evidence-based or evidence-informed programs and
practices that mitigate and prevent the impact of (ACEs for children, by utilizing a whole-family
approach. The Contractor will ensure the member organizations provide appropriate education
and support for children and their families and caregivers.

The services and programs provide support for children up to eighteen (18) years of age
who have witnessed or been victims of trauma, as well as their families and caregivers. The
types of supports offered include child advocacy, parent-child mentors, peer mentoring, child
and parent therapy, support groups, curriculum based programs, and children enrichment and
development programming. The goal is to reduce the impact on children wtio have witnessed
and/or been victims of traunia and the incidences of future trauma that may be prevented through
access to these services.

Childhood experiences have shown to have a significant impact on future violence,
victimization and perpetration, and lifelong health implications. Individuals experiencing ACEs
also are at a significant risk for substance use disorders (SUOs).

The services made available through this contract include staffing in the twelve (12)
Domestic and Sexual Violence Crisis Centers to advocate for children and .youth who have
witnessed traumatic events, including overdoses. Research has shown that when preventing
and/or mitigating Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACEs). outcomes can improved future social
and health outcomes, including:

•  Increased life expectancy.

•  Decreased risk for alcoholism, chronic pulmonary disease, depression, illicit drug use.
liver disease, adolescent pregnancy, and similar issues and diseases.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, children with
ACEs and their families and caregivers may not receive adequate support, advocacy, and
education to overcome those experiences. (.

Area served: Statewide

■ Source of Funds: 100% Other Funds (Governor Commissioner Funds).
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In the event that Other Funds (Governor Commissioner Funds) become no longer
available. General Funds will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

'(f)

Lori A. Shibinette
Commissioner

The Oeporime/tio/Meofth cud Humtm Seniin$'Miuion u lojoln eonimiimhee and fo/ttitia
in ptvvidini cpporiiinllict far eiliicu to ochicc* end i»ure/*/iden<c.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACES) within
Domestic Violence Crisis Centers

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment to the

Adverse Childhood Experiences (AQES) within Domestic Violence Crisis Centers Contract

This 1* Amendment to the Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACES) within Domestic Violence Crisis
Centers contract (hereinafter referred to as 'Amendment #1') is by and between the State of New
Hampshire. Department of HeaRh and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "Stale" or
'Departmenr') end New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Vioience, (hereinafter referred
to es 'Iho Contractor"), a nonprofit corporation wiih a place of ̂ siness at 100 North Main Street. Suite
300, CorKord. NH 03301.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contracf) approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on September 16. 2019 (item 01B).) the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the
lerrhs and conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified: and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules or terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions. Paragraph 18. and Exhibit C-l. Revisions to
Standard Contract Language. Paragraph #2. Renesval. the Contract may be amended upon written
agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parlies agree to extend the term of the agreement and Increase the price limitation to
support continued delivery of these services: end

WHEREAS, all terms and conditions of Ihe Contract not inconsistent with this Amendment #1 remain in
full force and effect; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parlies hereto agree to amend as follows;

1. Form P-37 General Provisions. Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read;

June 30. 2021.

2. Form P-37. General Provisions. Block 1.8. Price Limiialion. to read:

$720,000.

NewHimpfhire doiClion Againil
OomtsUc and Sc*u»l Vlql«nce Amendmani fl l Conttaoorlniliatj,

SS-2Q20-60AS-0S-A0VER Page 1 ol 3 Oflle
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACES) within
Domestic Violence Crisis Centers

This amendment shall be effective upon (he date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parlies have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Oate Name; Ketja S. Fox
Title: Director

New Hampshire Coalition Against
Domestic and Sexual Violence

3 il^lozo

Dale Name: b/\

Acknov/ledgement ot Contractor's signature:

State of /ifc*sii^ai^sie»-County on 3-* //-^oAO . before the
undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified directly above, or satisfactorily proven to
be the person vrf)ose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document In the
capacity indicated above.

Si^nature of Notary PuWic or Justice of the Peace

Narti'e.^drTltl0,of Notary or Justice of the

..:  fi^y Commissior^ Expires: ^
: <r .• i :■

y'/rity-

New Hempshire Coeiiiiw Agolnjl . . '/#/) S
OomeHic end Sexuel Violence Amcndmeniei Contfadorlmlmh
SS-2Q20-eOAS-O5-ADVER P«go2ol3 Data 3'H 2c2d
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Now Hampshire Oopartment of Health and Human Services
Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACES) within
Domestic Violence Crisis Centers :

The preceding Amendment, having l)een reviewed by Ihis office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Date / JrSVCO A-
Title:

I hereby cenity that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (dale of- meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Na"ie:
THIe:

New Hampshire CodtiionAgeBMi
Domestic and Sexual Vio.lenoa Amendmeni Conifactof IrdUels
SS-20M-BDAS-OS^DVER Page 3 oI 3 Date '^■*1 XOlwO
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itftrtj A. Mijrvt
• Ceanlntemf

Keiji $. Fei
Dimier

ftUC29'19ph 2=00 OftS
STATE OP NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

D/mWr^FOR EiEHAVtORAL HEALTH

129 PlCASANTSTReer. CONCORD. NH OUOl
M»7|.9544 l40Ce«S2}>4SCiUP$44

F«i:M^27l^2 TDDAccm: 1400-735-2964 «w«.dhht.nh.(ev

li ̂

August 27. 2019

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department o1 Health and Human Services, Divi$iof> for Behavioral Heatth,
toer^ter into a soleeource agreement with the New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and
Sexual Violence (NCADSV). Vendor # 155510-8001), 100 North Main Street. Suite 300,
Concord. NH 03301 to prevent and mitigate incidences of adverse childhood experiences
(ACEs). statewide, in an amount not to exceed S360.000, effective upon.Govemor and Executive
Council approval through June 30, 2020. 100% Other Funds (Governor Commission Funds).

Funds to support this request are anticipated to be available in the following account for
Stale Fiscal Year 2020 upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future
operating budget, with authority to adjust amounts within the price limitation and .adjust
encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-90-920510-3382 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL H^LTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL,
GOVERNOR COMMISSION FUNDS.

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/Account Class Title Job Number
Total

Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92058502 $360,000

Total $360,000

EXPLANATION
«

This request is sole source because on December 14,2018, the Governor's Commissior>
on Alcohol and other Drugs approved funding for the New Hampshire Coalition against Domestic
and Sexual Violence (NHCADSV) and its member agencies to Implement programming and
practices to support children and their families/caregivers who have experienced adverse
childhood experiences (ACEs). Per RSA 12-J, the Department carries out the administrative
functions of the Commission.
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The purpose of this request is to enhance and expand the wortt of the NHCADSV and its
member agencies statewide to prevent and mitigate the incidences of ACEs.

Approximately 350 children will be served through June 30,2020.
The Contractor will enter into subcontracts with its twelve (12) Domestic and Sexual

Violence Crisis Centers to provide evidence-based or evidence-infoim^ programs and
practices that miligale and prevent the impact of ACES for children utilizing a whole-farnily
approach. The Contractor will ensure the member organizations provide appropriate education
and support for children and their families.

The services and programs provided will support children up to eighteen (18) years of
age who have witnessed or been victims of trauma, as well as their families and caregivers. The
types of supports offered include child advocacy, parent-child mentors, peer meritonng. chiW
and parent therapy, support groups, curriculum based programs, and chiWren enrichment and
development programming.. The goal is to reduce the impact on children who have witnessed
and/or been victims of trauma and the incidences of future trauma may be prevented through
the blertd of aeivioes available.

Childhood experiences, both positive and negative, have a Iremendous impact on future
violence victimization and perpetration, and lifelong health and opportur>ity. ACEs are stressful
or traumatic events, which may Include witnessing or directly experiencing abuse and neglect.
Individuals experierwng ACEs ere at a significant risk for substance use disorders (SUDs).

The senrices ma(?e available through this contract Include increasing staffing In the
twelve (12) Domestic and Sexual Violence Crisis Centers in order to advocate for children and
youth who have witnessed traumatic events, including overdoses. Research has shoi^ that
when preventing and/or mitigating ACEs. outcomes can include improved future social and
health outcomes, including;

Increased life expectancy.

Decreased risk for alcoholism, chronic pulmonary disease, depression, illicit drug
use. liver disease, adolescent pregnancy, and similar Issues and diseases.

As referenced in the Exhibit C-1 of this contract, the parlies have the option to extend
contract services for up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon salisfaclory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement, of the parties and approval of the Governor and
Executive Council.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, children with
ACES and their families may not receive adequate support, advocacy, and education to
overcome the ACES that have occurred and prevent future incidences of trauma.

■r

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Funds: 100% Other Funds (Governor Commissioner Funds)
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.In (he event that Other Funds (Governor Commissioner Funds) become no longer
available, Gerveral Funds will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

J^rey A. Meyers
Commissioner

Tht Depofimtnt o/ //cotiA ond Human Scviau'Afurion ii lo^tn cem/nuAir»4« oAd/onu'liei
in prauidin^ opportunilicf for oiu«A« (o acKltvt htolth Ond ind£p€nd*nct.
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FORM MUMBCft f-)7<*<aloa 578/19)

Subject; Advtwe Chitdhood E«ocficnee« IACESt yn\hin Domnik Crit'l CtnitH (SS-IO^O-BOAS-OS-aDVERI

Waiiee: This tsxeemcnl Dnd all of lu tiiichmenu thill hccome public upon tubmiuien lo Covtrrto/ CAd
Ejtecuiive Council for cpproval. Any tnfomuiion (hit is pfivste, confidcniial or proprieliry mini
be cUarly idenlificd lO the agency and agreed to In Mriiing prior to signing the conuact.

ACREEMEM

The Suie or New Hsmpshirt and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as rollowrs:

general FROVISIONS

t. IDCNTIFICaTIO?!^ ^
I.I Sutc A|cney Name

NK Deportment orHealihsnd Humin Services

tj Contractor Narne

New Hampshire Coalition Against Oomcsiic and Sexual
Violence

1.2 Stale Agency Addrcu

129 Pleuim Street
Corkord.NH 033010157

1.4 Conirodor Address

100 North Main Sireei, Suite 300
Cortcoed, NH 03301

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

(603)234Ot9)

1.6 Account Number

05-95-93-9205IO-3)(20000

1.7 Completion Date

600/2020

l.t Price Limiutilon

5360.000

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency
Nathan D. White. Director

1.10 State Agency Teicphotw Number
60]O7(-963l

1.11 Contractor Signature 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

Zyn M'
1.13 Atbnqwiedgement: Si^cofrV/dK/W.«^AjtdCounry of

proven:(o'be.ihe'ij6rs6p w)

before thc-undersignedofTicer. pcrsonaliy appeared the person identified iit block 1.12. or satisfactorily
whose name is signed in blxk I.I I, aM acknowtedgcd that s/he executed (hii document In the capacity

I. li.f- "Sj5idtC/-J;0f No)try Public or Justice of ihe t

- lsti!l>'/- ^
1.13.2 NarfW3^,-Titk sf Noury or Justice of the Peace

fvve-W AJo
1.14 State Agency Signatureaiure i 1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

1.16 Ap^oval bytl^e N.H. Deportment of Adminislreiton, Division of Pcr^^utel O/oppflcabUj
By; Oirecior. Or>:

1.17 Appfovil by the Anomey Ceneml (Eo«m, Subiiartce and Eieeution) 0/opplicobli)

. On:

r.lB Approval by Ihe Cov^rncp end Executive Council f(/opptkoblt)

By: On:

Page I ofd
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2. EMrLOVMENTOfCONTIUCTOR/SCRVICESTO
6C PERFORMED. The SioteofNewH«mpjhl<t. Kiln|
ihfoufch the identified in block i .1 ("Siete"), engixci
ebnift<(or identified in block 1.3 C^onifietw") to perfonn.
tnd the Contrecioe ihtll perfonn, (he work or wie of good*, or
both, identified end ntort ptniculeriy deicribed in the tnoched
EXHIBit A which itincorporeted herein by reference
(••Serrkci").

y EFFECTIVE date/completion OF SERVICES.
3.1 Nctwiihsundini my provision of this Agreemeni to the
contnry. md tvbjeci to the opprovil of the Covcmor ind
Executive Council of ihe Stite of New HernpsMrt, if
•pplieebk, this AgreemeAi, md ell obligelions of (he pertiet
heitunder, shell become cffcciivc on the dete.lhe Covtrnor ^
end Executive Council approve this Agreement ei indieeted in
block l.tl. unless no nich opprovtUi rc^ulrtd. Irt which cose
the AfscemeM shall become effeciive on the dele the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency es shown in block
1.14 ("Effcciive One").
3.2 If the Contmaor eommences the Services prior to the
Effective Oite, all Services perfonned by the Contnctor prior
to the Effective Oitc ihsll be perfomied at the sole risk of ihe
Contractor, md in the event that this Agreement docs not'
become efrcciive. the State shall have no liability to the
Conincior, including without limitation, thy obligation to pay
.the Contractor for my costs incurred or Services performed.
ConirKtor rmat complete all Services by the Completion Dpu
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONALNATUREOFAGREEMENT.
Noiwithsiending any provision of ihis Agrecmeni to Ihe
contrary, all obligations of the State hcreundci. including,
without limitation. Ihe coniinuarsce of paymenu hereunder. are
contingent upon the ovailabiliiy and continued appropriation
of funds, md in no event shall the Suie be liable for any
payments hereunder in exccu of such available appropriated
funds, in the event of a rcdudion or lerminaiion of
appropriated funds, the State shall have ihe right to withhold
payment until such fimds become available. If ever, and shall
have Ihe right to lerminaie this Agrccffleni immedialcly upon
giving the Contractor notice of such iciminilion. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds m that
Account arc reduced or unavailible.

5. contract price/frice limitation/
PAVMENT.

5.1 Theconiraclprice, method of paytnent. arid terms of
peyntcni ere ideniificd and mote pahicuierly described in
EXHIBIT 8 which Is Incorporated herein by reference.
3.2 The payment by ihc Suie of the coniroci price shall be the
only and ihe compkie reimbursement lo Ihe Coniracior for oil
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Comracior in the
pafomunee hereof, and shall be the onfy and the complete
compcnuiioiMO the Coniracior for the Services. The Suie
Shall have no liability lo the Coniracior oiher thin the contraci
price.

Page 2

3.3 The State retervo the right to ofTsei from any amounts
ether\vjse payable to the Contractor under this Agrcemeni
those liquidated amounu required or pcrmined by N.H. RSa
10:7 through RSA g0;7<Orany other provision of law.
5.4 Noiwithsianding my provision in (his Agreement to the
eonirtry. and notwithsunding unexpected circunuimccs, in
no event shall the total of all paymenu auihoiiacd. or Kiually
made hiercvnder, exceed ihe Price Limitation set forth in block
1.1.

4. COMPLIANCE BV CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND RCCULATIONS/ EQUAL CMPLOVMCNT
OPPORTUNITY.
4.1 In corwection with iheperformarKe of theScrvieci. the
Coniracior Shall eomply wlilt all iiaiutes, law*, regulations,
and orders of fedeml. tuie. eounty or munieipsi authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include iherequtremenirouiilixetuiilraor
aids md services to ensure thai persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, con
communicffe with, receive information from, and convey
Information to the ContrKior. In addliron. the Contractor
shall coirqrly with all applicable copyright laws. .
4.2 During the term of ihis Agreement, the Cooiractor shall
not discriminate against employees or ypplicanu for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex. .
hai^icap, sexual oricmaiien. Of national origin and will take -
affirmitive Ktlon to prcvcni luch^diseriminsilon.
4.3 If this Agretmcni is funded in my pan by monies of the
United Slates, the Contractor shall eomply with all Ihe
provisioru of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal
Employment Opportunity"), as supplert>entcd by the
regulations of the United States O^artmcni of Labor (41
C.F.R. Pen 60), and with any rules, rcguUtions md guidelines
OS the Stole of New Hampshire or the United Sutes issue to
imp1cmcr»t these regulations. The Contractor ftmher agrees to
permit the State or United States eccess to my of the
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
md the covenants, terms md coruJiiioiu of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEU

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel neceisary to perform the Services. The Contractor
wvTtnu that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified le perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed arsd oihcrwiic euthoriied le do SO under ail applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise auihoiiied in writing, during the icrm of
(his Agreement, and for o period of six (4) months afler the
Completion Date In block 1.7, the Comrodor shall ret hire,
artd shall rtoi permit ony subcontrtctor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it Is enpged in o combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who <i a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, adrnmistfoiion or performance of this

Controctor Initials
Date
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Atre«mcflt. That provision thill survive termiraiion of this
A|ftemcni.
7.3 The Coniwirng orTicer ipccificd in block t .9, or his or
her lucccssor. shall be the Stale's reprttcMtiivc. Irt the event
of any Oispuieconeernin|ihe ttuerpreiation ofihis Aertcmeni.
the Controctirts OfTiccr's decision shall be Onal for (he Suie.

8. CVe^T OF DerAUtTmtMEDtES.

8.1 Any one or mort of the (bllowing ecu or omissions of (he
Concmior shall conpiivu art event cf defauti hcrcunOer
("Everu of OcfaulO;
I.I.I fiilurc w perform (he Services saiisfaciorily oroti
schedule;

I.I-.2 fatlurc to subtnil any report rtowircd herewrtdcr. and/or
8.1.1 failure to perform any otiKr cbvenani. term or corsdition
ofthis Asftemeni.

8.2 Upon (he occurrence of any Evcni of Default, the State
may take any one. or more, or all. of the follovilns actions:
8.3.1 give the Contractor a wrinen notice tpccifyin8ihc Eveni
of Defauli and leqttirinf it (O be remedied within, in the
absence of e greater or lesser tpceificfition of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; artdif the Evertt of OefauU is
not timely rtrnddicd. ttrminaie this Agreement, efTeciive two
(2) days aOer giving the Contractor notice of tominition;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a wrinen notice specifying the Event
of Oefauh and suspending all paymenu to be made urtdcr this
Agreement and ordering thii the ponion of the conimci price
which would otherwise accrue to the Controcter during the
period from the dan of such noiicc untiliuch time as the Sute
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 set off agsinit any cither obligations the State may owe to
the Ceniftcior any damages the Suic suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; ondfor

8.2.4 ueat the Agreemcni u bruchcd and pursue any of iu
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. OATA/ACCESS/CONFIOENTIAUTV/
preservation.

9.1 As used in this Agreemem.the w^ "di(a~ shall mean all
infbrmaiion and things developed or obtained during the
pcrformarKe of. or acquired or developed by reason of. this
Agreement, including, but not limited lo. all Studies, repons.
filet, formulae, surveys, mips, chans, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial rcproduaions. drawings, analyses,
gmphic rcprese nut ions, computer programs, computer'
printowU, rtotes, letters, memorirtda, popen. end documenu,
all whether finished or unfinished.
9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased ̂ th funds provided for (hat purpose
ufsder this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, ond
shall be returned to the Sutc upon demand orsipon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Conftdcnlialiryofdata shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 9l-A or .other existing law. Oiteiesitreordaia
requires prior vnrinen approval of the State.

Page 3

10. termination. Inibc event ©fan early termination of
this Agmmtni for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Offieer, not later than ftfleen (IS) days after the date of
termination, a repot ('Termirtalioo RcpOfi") describing in
dcu!) all Services peiVormcd, and the contract price earned, to
and including the dsie of termination. The form, subject
miner, content, and number ofcopio of the Termination
Report shell be identical to thox ofany Final Report
deseribed in the oitached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S REI^TION TO THE STATE. In

the performance of this Agreement the Coniraaor is in til
rapccu an Independcni contrueier, ortd Is rtclther en ageni nor
an employee of the Suit. Nelihcrihe Conirvcior nor any of its
officen, empJoyea, agenu or memben shall have euihe^ty to
bind (he Sute or receive any bcncflu, workers' compenuiion
or other err^lumenis provided by the Sute to iU employees.

12. assicnment/delecation/subcontracts.
The Contractor shall not assign, or oiherwiw transfer any

•  tnicrrsi in this Agreement without the prior wrinen rtotlce and
consent of the Sute. None of the Services shall be
subcontracted by ihe Contractor without the prior wrinen
rtoiice and consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the Sute. its ofTiccn and
employees, from end iptnst any and all losses suffered by the
Sute, iu officers ortd cmployea. and any artd all claims,
liabilities or penalties osscncd against the Sute, its officea
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of.
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arix out oO the acts or omissions of the
Conoactor. Notwithstanding the foregoirtg, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity ofthe Sute, which immunify is hereby
rewirvcd to the Sute. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the tcrminiiion of this Agreement.

U. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expenx. obtain and
mainuin in force, and shall require any subcontractor or

■  assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:
14. I.I oomprehcnslve genercl liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, In amounts
of not less thanSI.OOO.OMper occurrence o/td S2.000,000
aggregate; and
14.1.2 special caux of loss cowage form covering all .
property subjca to subparagroph 9.2 herein, in an omtHmt not
less than 10% ofthe whole replacement value ofthe property.
14.2 The policies described in subpiragraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorxmenu approved for tix in the
Slate of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers liccrued in the Sute of New
Hampshire.

.of ̂
ConliictOf Iniltals

tOf



DocuSign Envelope ID; 977C710A-9948-4676-AAFF-E509CFBD102E

OocuSIgn EftveJope ID: 02F475e2-9OOT-46e7.A551-D8B05e452227

14.3 The Conirtciof fumlib to iheCeou^tiing OfTiw
idcniiricd in block 1.9. Of hij of hci luccmor, • e<nifte4«e(i)
ofiftsufince for til ioiirrtncc rcqwiftd imdtnhii Aftftemtni.
Cofltffttior thill ilM fumuh to ihi CooirKiingOfTiccf
idcwifiotf In block 1.9. or hit or her tucctuof. cenincucU) of
inauftnce for iM reocwalft) of iM«f««K4 required under ihit
Ajrcemcht no later than ihiftjr (39) dtyi ?r\v to the e^pSntlon
date of each of the insunnce poHckt. The certinciiefi) of
iftjartflce tnd tny rcfte*»l$ thereof »htH be iiuched and are
incorporated herein by rtfoertce. Eatheeftific*ie(»)of
injuftnee ihall contain a clauit requiring the inture/ to
provide the ConVBCiing OfTieer identified in bloea 1.9, or hli
or het tucceuor. no 1cm than ihiny (30) dayj prior weintn
notice of eineellition or modiAeatlon of the policy.

IS. WORKERS'COMftNSATION.
IJ. I By tigning ihh agreemerti, the Concracior igrcei.
cenir«> and ̂ rranii that the Coniraaor ii in compliarKC -Ith
or exempt ftom. the reqoiremcnu ofN.H. RSA chapter 2li'A
("W^rUn * Comperwfl'rw".)-
/3 2 To the extetu the Contractor ii lubject to the
requirtmtnu of N.H. RSA chapter 311 -A. Contncior shall
malrttoin. and require any lobcomractor or aMignce to iccvre
and maintain, payment of Wofken' Ccmpenuiion in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
gndcfWke pursuant to this Agreement. Controcor shall
fumith the Comracling Offreer tdcniified in block 1.9..df his
or her itxeeisor. proof of Workers' CompenMiion in the
manner described In N.H. RSA chapter 211-A and any
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and.aie
Incorpomicd herein by reference. The State shall not be
reiporuiblc for payment of any Workers* Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Comrtcioi. or
any lube^ifociof or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable Sute of New Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws in connocion with the performance of the
Services under this Agrtemeni.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the Sute to
cctforcc any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to llut Event of
Default, or any aubsequcni Event of Default. No express
failuTt to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver "of ihc light of the State io enforce each and ell of the
provisions hcrtof upon any further or other Event of DefauH
on the part of the Coftiracior.

17. NOTICE. Any rsotice by a party hereto to the other party
Shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the

.  lime of mailing by cenintd mail, posuge prepaid. In a Uaiicd
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

IS- amendment. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or diuhargcd only by an intlrumcnt in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendrrseni. waive/ or discharge by the Covemor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no

such approval is required utsder the citcumsiances pursuaiu to
State law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed In accordance with the
lawsofthe Sute of New Hampshire, and is binding uport and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
sticcessors and assigns. The wording used Inthii Agretmcru
is the wording chosen by ihe paniu to apress their mutual
intent, and no rule of eonsiruction shall be applied agamsi or
in favor of any parry.

20. THIRD parties. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third panics ond this Agreemeni shall not be
construed to conrc any such benefit.

II. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
arc for reference purposes only, and the wwds conutned
(herein shall in no way lie held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in Ihe initrpretaiion, eonsiruction or meaning of the
p/ovisiona of this Agrecnteni.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Addiliorsal provisiona set
forth in the anached EXHIBIT C are Incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. Inihe event any of the provisioMof
this Agrecmem ore held by a court ofcorrtpttenl jurisdiction to
be contrary to any sute or federal law, the remaining
provisiofu of this Agreemervt will remoin in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and .
undcrsunding between the parties, end supersedes all prior
Agrcemcnis and undcrstandinp icltilng hereto.

Page 4 of 4
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Scope of Services

1. Provisions.Applicable to All Services
1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance

services they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure
meanlogfoi access to their programs end/or services within ten (10) days of
the contract effective date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an Impact
on the. Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify
Service priorities and expenditure requirements under this Agreement.so as
to achieve, compliance therewith.

1.3.. For the purposes of this agreement, the Department has identified .the
Contractor as a Conlractor. in accordance with 2 CFR 200.300.

1.4. For the purposes of this agreement. Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACES)
are stressful or traumatic experiences. Including at>use. neglect and a range
of dysfunctional events experienced by children from birth through age
eighteen (16) either In a home or community setting, which may Include, but
are not limited to;

1.4.1. Having a parent or guardian who is currenlty-in jail or has been in jail.

1.4.2. Living with someone who drinks too much alcohol.

1.4.3. Living with someone who uses illegal drugs or abuses prescription
■ drugs.

1.4.4. -Having-been verbally abused by a parent or adult in the household.

1.4.5. Having been physically abused by a parent or adult in the household.

1.4.6. Witnessing domestic abuse of parents/adults in household.

1.4.7. -Having been sexually abused by an older or stronger family member or
other person outside the family.

2. Scope of Services ■

2.1. The Contractor shall enter into subcontracts with its member organizations to
provide evidence-based or evidence-Informed programs and practices to.
mitigate and prevent the impact of ACES for children utilizing a whole-family
approach.

2.2. The Contractor shall distribule funding utilizing the following steps;

2.2.1. Atert membership to the funding that is available.

2.2.2. Request interested members to submit a plan for utilizing avellable
funding.

NewHwipahirBCoaaiioflAflaiMl e«hbiiA Controaof inHiali
OometiicandSewtlVclana ^ n...
SS-2020-8OASO$A0veft Page! of 4
Rav.CSWtS
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Exhibit A

2.2.3. Review proposed plans from membership organizations.

2.2.4. Delerminc the level of funding for each plan submitted.

2.2.5. Provide the plans to the Department including the amount of funding
awarded.

2.2.6. Receive written approval from the Department to proceed with the plan.

2.3. The Contractor shall ensure each member organization provides programs
and services that impact ACES that Include, but are not limited to;

2.3.1. Cufricoium{s) for children for social and emotional learning lhat are
evWenced-based. developmentally appropriate and strength-based.

2.3.2. Curricylums for parents, guardians, and relative caregivers on evidence
"based parenting, which may include, but is not limited to:

2.3.2.1. Sober Parenting Journey.

2.3.2.2. Relatively Speaking.

2.3.2.3. Parenting a Second Time Around.

2.3.3. A child advocate, family advocate or adverse childhood experiences
response team (ACERT) advocate.

2.3.4. Partnerships with organizations that serve children and youth, which
may .include, but are not limited to:

2-.3.4.1. Schools.

2.3.4.2. Boys and Girts Clubs.

2.3.4.3. Family Resource Centers.

2.3.4.4. Other family organizations, as approved by the Department.

2.3.5. Peer support groups for family meml>€rs.

2.3.6.. Support groups for children as well as their families.

2.3.7. Therapy services for children and youth that are evidenced-base or
evidence*informed.

2.3.B. Services provided by Child Advocacy Centers within New Hampshire,
which may Include, but are no! limited to:

2.3.6.1. Provide a safe, neutral, and appfophale place for law
enforcement to interview children who may have witnessed or
have been victims of crime;

2.3.8.2. Provide a trained court appointed child appointed advocate for
judicial related matters

2.3.8.3. Assist with ensuring children who have witnessed or have

\  eiSbiiA Conwaormnui. UHL-
Oomettie and Se*u«»Vioieftco
SS-2020 aOASOSAOVER Rape 2 0^4 OM
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been viclims of crime receive services which will benefit their
development such as f^u^rilion, education, child-care, and
proper parenting/caregiving

2.4. The Contractor shall ensure that all subcontracts with member organizations
include mandatory training, as approved by the Department, for all staff who
provide direct services to children and their families. The Contractor shall
ensure staff trainings focus on:

2.4.1. Life experiences.and brain development.

2.4.2. Impact of substance use disorders upon families.

2.5. The Contractor shall maintain Certificates of Attendance for staff completing
mandatory trainings and will make the certificates available to the Department
upon request.

3. Reporting and Deliverables

3.1. The Contractor Shall;

3.1.1. Ensure member ofganizations under subcontract are available for on-
site visits conducted by the Department.

3.1.2. Participate in bi-annual site visits conducted by the Department either
in person or by conference call.

3.1.3. Ensure a minimum of one (1) representative per member organization
participates m the Prevention Community of Practice conducted by the
Department on a bi-monthly basis.

3.2. The Conlractor shall submit quarterty reports to, the Department when'the
number of individuals served by all participating member organizations is
greater than five (5) individuals. The Contractor shall ensure quarterly reports
include, but are not limited to:

3.2 1. De-identified and aggregate data with no personal health Information

3.2.2. Narrative summary of:

3.2.2.1. Progress toward meeting the scope of services in Exhibit A.

3.2.2.2. Challenges encountered in meeting the scope of services in
the previous quarter.

3.2.2.3. Written plan of how to mitigate challenges during the following
quarter.

3.2.3. Aggregate demographic information that includes, but is not limited to:

civS
New MtmpahirB CoeWreo Agtln«t Eihibil A CenUPOO' ,
Oomojlicand Se«uil ViolcW Sf A f IT
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3.2.3.1. Gender of individuals served.

3.2.3.2. Number of Individuals served by range of ages;

3.2.3.2.1. Ages 0 to 4.
3.2.3.2.2. Ages 5 to 8.
3.2.3.2.3. Ages9to11.
3.2.3.2.4. Ages 12 to 14.
3.2.3.2.5. Ages 15 to 17.
3.2.3.2.6. Ages 16 to 20.
3.2.3.2.7. Ages 21 to 29.
3.2.3.2.8. Ages 30 to 54.
3.2.3.2.9. Ages 55 and over.

i/y\^
NewHimpjhireCoaDlionAgimjt EinibirA Conu®cior Inlliais,
OomeiticandSeivQi V'ctence 47 >.2.1 lA
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A/lethod and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The Stale shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Form P-37. eiock 1.8,
Price Llmitatior* for the services provided pursuant to Exhibit A. Scope of Services.

2 This agreement Is funded with other funds: 100% Governor's Commission of Alcohol
and other Drugs Alcohol funds.

3. Failure to meet the scope of services may jeopardize the funded Contractor's current
and future funding. ^ .

4. Payment for said services shall be made on a monthly basis as follows:
4.1. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred

in the fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be for subcontracting costs only.

4.2. The Contractor-shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the State by the
twenty-first (21**) worXing day of each month, which identifies and requests
reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prbr month.

4.3. The Contractor shall ensure the invoice is completed, signed, dated and returned
to the Department in order to Initiate payment.

4.4. The State shall make paymeni to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of
each invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted Invoice and if sufficient funds
are available.

5 The Contractor shall have appropriate financial policies and procedures in operation to
maintain dear accounting line deiinealions for appropriations to Its member
organizations providing ACES services.

6 The Contractor shall keep detailed records of their activities relaled to Department-
funded programs and services available for Department review, upon request.

7 The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the contract
completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions Blotk 1.7 Completion Date.

0. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed
to Jill.Burke@dhhs.nh.gdv. or invoices may be mailed to:

Attention: Jill BurXe
Department of Health and Human Services
Division for Behavioral Health

Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services
105 Pleasant Street. Main Building
Concord. NH 03301 ■

New CooEtbn Agalnsi , C«r</idorlnUeli.
OomBiOc Cf>d S«*ual Votence n.i.V'2/.i^
ftS.»««OAS4)«0vEP , Oale_L-Al'»/SS-202CeOAS4)V40vEP
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9. Payments may be withheld perxjing receipt of required reports or documentation es
Identified in Exhibil A, Scope of Services and in this Exhibit B.

10. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding
under this agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of non-
compliance with any Federal or State law. rule or regulation applicable to the services
provided, or if the said services or products have not been satisfactorily completed in
accordance with the terms and conditions of this agreen^ent.

11. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, char>ges limited to
adjusting amounts between budget line items, related Items, amendments of related
budget exhibits within the price limitation, and to adjusting encumbrances between
State Fiscal Years, may be made by written agreement of both parties arid may be
made without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

Nr»»M»mp3hireCo#lIlio«AgiiAil . EjMU 0 Cortrfldo*
Oometlc srid Sexvsi VbitAoe O ̂2.1
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^PPfJAL PflQVISIQNS

Coni7Qcto/s OWgations: The Conireciof covenant end agrees that all funds recolvod 6y ihe Contractor
under the Conl/ad shaJ) Oe used ordy as payment to the Contradof for services provided to etiyWe
Irsdrvifluals and. ir» the furthcrBf^ce of the aforesaid eovenanti. the Contractor hefet>y covenants and
e9rees as foOows:

1. CompliirKe wfth Federal and SUte Laws: if the Controctor is pefmUted todctermlne the cfigibaiiy
of Individuals sucn eiiglbiliiy determination shod be made m accordance with applicable federal and
State lows, ragutoiions, orders. PoDclos and procedures.

2. Timo and Manner of Oeterminettcn: EUplbaily deierminattorxs shall be mede on torma provlOeo Oy
the Oepartment for that purpesa and shall t>e made and remade at such Umei as aro prescribed by
the Department..

). Oocumonlatlon: In odditron to the determination forms rsqulfed by the Oepartmerrt. the Contractor
Shan maintain a data Tile on each recipient of services hereunder. which file Shan include all.
Inftfmailon rtecessary to support an eligibiSty determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shai) furnish the Department wim on forms and documentation
regarding eBQiblltly dclermlnalior^s that the OepartmertI may request or require.

4. Fair Hearlnps: The Contredor understands that eo appicanis (or services hereunder, as vmn as
IndivUuals declared ineligible have a right to a (air hearing regarding thai determinatioo. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all a^icartis for services shall be permitted to TiiJ out
an appticaiion form and that each applicant or re-eppllcara shall bo informed of his/her right lo afair
hearing in accordance wilh Departmeni regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Controctor agrees that h Is a broach of this Contract to eccept or
make o payment, gratuity or offer of employmeni on behalf of the Controctor, any Sut^Contractor or
the State In order to ̂ fluenca the performance of the Scope of Work dctelied In Enhibit A of this
Contract. The'^tate may lermir\ate this Contract and any sub-cofltracl or sub-agraemen) if (t is
determined that payments, gratuilies or offers of emplo^^ni of any kind were ottered or received by
any officials. cfTeers. employees or ogenls of the Contractor or Sub-Conlrodor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwimstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or Inany
other document, conuact or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the panics
hereto, that no payments win be mede hereur>der to reimburse the Contractor (or costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any Individual prior lo the Effective Date ̂  the Contract
end no payments shall be rhode for expenses incurred by the Contraclor for any sen/ices provided
prto to the dalo on which the Individual applies (or services or (excepl as otherwise provided by the
federal regulalions) prtor to a determinalion thai the individual Is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary .conlainod In the Contract.nothing
herein contained shall bo deemed to obUgaie or require the Depenmeni to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the conuactor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the emounis reasonable crxJ necesscry to assure the quality of such servfce. or at a
rate which exceeds ihe raie charged by the Cortractor lo ineligible Individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time durif>9 the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Firtai
Expenditure Report hereunder. the Oeparlmeni ihail determine thai tha Contractor has used
poymertis hereunder to reimburse Items of expense other than such costs, or has rweived payment
In excess of such costs or in excess of .such rates charged by the Contractor lo ineligible Indl.vlduBls
or other third party funders. the Department may elect lo:

7.1. Renegotiale the rales for payment hereunder. in which event new rales shon be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment lo the ContradOf the amount of any prior reimbursemcniin

excess of costs;
EjNbtC-SfiCCUlF'OwblWtt ConlrtOW WUb ̂  '
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7.3. Oomandfopoymonloflh8 0Kca«paynienJbythoConU9ctorinwtiichevenil»iufetomake
auch repayment shaD constitute en Event ol Oefeuti hereunder. When the Contractor la
permined to determine the eligibility o! Individuals for services, the Contrector apreos to
reimburse the Department for at) paid by the Department to the Contractor for aervices
provided to any individua) wtw is found by the Department to be inengibie for such services at
any lime during the period of refenlion of records estabCshed herein.

RECORDS: MAIfn-ENANCE. RETENTION, AUDIT. DlSCt-OSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

e. Maintenance of Roeordi: In addiliOA to the eligibility records spe'circd abovo. the Coniractor
cover\ants and agrees to maintain the lollovHng racordi during the Contract Period:

а.l. fiscal Records: books, records. documerMi and other data evtdencing and rof)octir>g oil ccsti
and other expenses inurred by the Contractor in the performance Ol the Contract, and ail
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in eccordande with oecountl/tg procedures and practices which sufToently and
properly reflect aD such costs end expenses, arsd wtdch tit acceptable to the Depcnment, and
to tndudt. without timiiation, el) ledgers, books, records, arid ori^l evidenca ol costs such as
purchase reouisilions end orders, vouchers, reguitilions for materitfs. inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor lima cards. payroOs. and other records requested or required by the
Dcparimeni.

б.2. Statistical Records: Siatisiical. ervollment, anendaoce or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records &haD include ai) records d appiicaiionand
eligibtlity (Inclutfmg aO forms required (o determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of aenrices and el) invoices submitted to the Oepartrrieni lo obtain
payment for such services.

6.3. f^adica) Records: Where appropriate end as prescribed by the Department regulations.(he
Contractor Shan retalr) medical records on each patlent/recipleni of services.

G. Audit: Contractor shaD submit an ertnuai audii to the Department within 60 days eher the close of the
agency Fiscal year, tt is recommended thai the report be prepared in accordance wtih the pfovls'iOA of
Dffice of Management and Dudget Circular A-t33. "Audils of Slates. Local Governments. ^ Non
Profit Organitaiions' and the provisions of Siaridards for Audit of Govcrnmeniat Organizations,
Programs. Aeiiviiies and Furrctions. issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAD starrdards) as
they pertain to financial compTiance audits.

g.t. Audit artd Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Oepanmcnl of Health and Human Services, end any of their
desigitsted representatives shall have access to all reports and records mainiamed pursuarMto
(he Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

0.2. Audit llatwliiies; fn eddJlion to and not in any way In linvlalion of obligations of the Contract. It Is
urrderstood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contrector shati be hetd Qable for any state
or federai audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, si> payments made under the
Contract lo which exceptior> has been lakert or which have been disaaowed because of such on
exception.

10. Conridentlatity of Records: All mfo/mation. reports, end records marntalned hereunder or conected
in connection with the performance of the servicas and the Contract shot! be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by ifte Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to siale lows and the reguiailorts of
thd Department regarding the use and disclosura of such Informalion, disdcsure may bo made to
public officitis reqiirir^ such information in connection with their ofHcial duties end for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the oe/vfees or»d the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any Information concemir>g a radplant for any purpose r^ot
tfiractly connected wiih the administration of the Department or ihe Contractor's responsibDities with
respect to purcfiased services hereunder is prohitxied except on written tonseni ol the ratiplefit. his
attorney or guardian. ly^c

ExNUC-SpedaiProNilom CartrsooriNUari >
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NoN^tthstanding anyWno 10 ihe conl/ery eonialned herein ihe covenants and conditions contained in
trte Paragraph shaD survive the lermina^on o( the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal oryJ Statistical: The Contmcior agrees to submit the following reports el the following
limes If re^sied by the Department. ...
I'l.V Interim Financial Repoiis: Written inie^ ftnancial reports containing a dataiteddescripuonof

at! costs arv) norveiiowaUe expenses Incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report end
containing such other intormallon as shall be deemed «Usfoctory by the Ocpanmem to
jutlify the rale or peymeni hereunoer. Such Finsneial Reports shaS be submined on me form
designated by ii^ Department or doomed satistaciory by (ho Departmani.

1 !.2. Final Report; A'final ftpwy shall be submlRed within ihir^ (30) days oher mo or>d of me larm
of iNs Conlroci. Tha FiMi Report ahon be In o form eotiefoctory (o mo Dopertment ond thai*
contalna summery etalemont of progress towordgoels ond ob;ecilvaB etotodin thoPropoeai
and olher information re^ed by the Oepsrtmerkl.

12. CompletJon of Servlcos: Disallowance of Costs; Upon the purchase by the Department of Ihe
maximum number of units ̂ovided lor in the Contrecl.end upon payment of ma price limllalion
he/eunder. the Controct and ail.the obiigaOons of the parties hereunder (except such ofigaHons as.
by the tenns of the Contract ore lo be performed after the end of the term of this Contract ond/or
surwve the lerm matior^ Of the Contract) shaO lefmlnoie. provided however, that if, upon.revlew of the
Final Exj^endilure Report the Dopartmem'shall diseltow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shaO retain the rigm. at its discretion, to dedua the amount of such
expenses as ore dlseitov^ or to recover such sums from tho Contractor.

13. Credits; Alt documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or roiulting from the performance of the serv'ices of the Contract shall include ihefooowlng
siaiement:
13.1. The preparation of this (report, documcrt etc.) was fir«ncod under a Contract with the State

of New Hampsh'xe. Dcperirhent of Heath end Human Services, wimfuryfs provided in part
by the Slate of New Hampshlfe and/or such other funding sources as were available or

■ required, e.g.. the United Slates Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyrfghi Ownership: All maierials (whiten, video, audio) produced w
purchased under the contract shafl have prior approval from OHHS before prinlir>g. produclior>.
disifibutiort or use. The DHMS wW retain copyright ownership for any ond all ortginel materials
produced, including, but not limited lo. brochurti. resource direcJories. protocols or guidetines.
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contractwlthout
priw whneo approval from OHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Lews and Regulations: tn the operation of any focililles
(or "providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and rogutatlons of federal,
state, county and rnunlcipot authorities or>d vwlh ar>y direct'ion of any Public Officer or olflcere
pursuant to tews wNch shall Impose an order o* duty upon the contractor wUh respect to the
operaliorj of the facility or the provision of the services at Such /acHily. H any governrnerval lfcer\se or
pcrmU shBD be required for the operation of the said fadiliy or the pcrformaxp of the sa'sj services.
Ihe'Cttitrador wffl procure said license or permiL ar>d witi at 8fl limes compty with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with iho foregoirtg requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that. duTir>Q the term of this Contract the faciiii»es shall
comply with ell rules, orders, regufallons. ar^ reqoiremcrtts of the State Offica of the Fire Mershaiand
the'locel fire protection ogency. arxJ shall be in coriformance with local building and toning codes, by
laws end regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOPI: The Contractor will provide an Equal EmpJoymonl
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for CMi Rights. Office of Justice Programs (OCR). If It has
received a single award of 5500.000 or more. II Ihe recipient receives 525.000 or more end has 50 or

ExiM C - Seeclii Prwuiom CommaorWiiihl''^^
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more emptoyeee ft wlJ) maWieIn a cumem EEOP on fte ond suOmli on EEOP ̂ificolio^onn to the
OCR ce^ngthai Us EEOP Is on file. For recipients receiving loss than $25,000. or poWic grentees
with (Wr than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the reagent wdl provi^ M
EEOP Ccrtlfcation Form to ihe OCR certifying It Is not regm/ad to submit or malnlam o« Norv
profit organliolions. Irvsian Trtbes. ar»d medical and educational Instd^ioM are efcm{« from ̂
EEOP requirement, but ore required to submit a ce.rtiftcalion form^lho 'f exemption.
EEOP Certifcatiffi Forms ere Ovailable oi: httpi/Mww.olp.usdoj/abouVocr/pdls/ccrt.pdl.

17 Limited English Prondency (LeP): as cJarified by Executive Order 1316B. Irnpfoving A^m to
' Services for persons with Limited EngBsh Proficiency, or^ reiuUmg oge^y nalionaiongm

dlscrtmlnatloft Includes discrimlnefion en the basis oflimiled English proficiency (LEP).
compliar>c« with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of l wa of me CMi
Rignii Act of 1904. ConlrtKlors must toUe resiortable steps to ensure that LEP Dorsons r\eve
meartingfui access to Its programs.

18 Pilot Program lor Enhancement of Contractor Employee WhIstlablower ProtecUons: Tho
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Sfmpiifiod Acqotaliten Threshold as defmed in48
CFR 2.101 (currcnlly. $150,000)

COS/TfiACTOft EwPLOrCC WHiSnEBLOWER RiCMIS MO R£0uibem6nT TO INFORM EMPtOYeES OF
WHisti£8L0W£R Rights (SEP 20i 3)

(a) This contract and employees worH'tng on trtis conuact win be tublect to the vmisUeW^r rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Coniracior employee whlstieWower ,
41 U.S.C. 4712 by seciion 826 of the National Oelense Auihoriialion Act for Fiscal Year 201) (Pub. L.
112-239) end FAR 3.908.

(W The (kKitractor shall inform Its employeei in writing. In the prcdomhanl langu^e oi the wfWorce,
olemptoyeo wWsliablowcr rights and prolectlons urw)er4i U.S.C. 47i2. os described m aectwn
3.906 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Corrtradof sfwD Insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c). m an
subcontrads over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19 Subcontractors: OHHS recognizes that the Contrador may choose to use subcontractors wUh
greater expertise to perform certain health care serv'ices or fundions for
W the Conuador shaft retain the responsibdity and occouniabilrty for the fune^s). Priw to
subcontracting the Contrador shall evaluate the lubconuador'a ebiWy to perform the delegated
fundtonls). This is accomplished through a written agreement that spec.f«cs ecbviues end 'eP^B.
responslbintles ol the subcontrodor and provides for rovoWng the <*«'09iri'W or
the subconuadofs performance is not adequate. Sobcontractors are subjed to the same co^ciuai
conditions as the Contractor and the Conlractof Is responsible to ensure subcontractor compfiance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the follovring:

19.1. Evaluate the prospedive subcontreciof's ability to perform the adiviiies. before delegating

19.2. Havea^Scn agreement with the sobconiraclof that specifies adivities endrcporting
responsibilities and how sandions/rovocalion wfti be menaged if the subcontredor s
performance is not adequate .

19.). Monitor the subcontraclor's performance on en ongoing basis

Eihionc-SpeciiiProrijJoro CorwKiorimim
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19.4. Provide to OKHS ar> annual schedule identifying aB subcontractors, detegated (unctioAsar\d
rosponiibl&llot. ̂  wtien (he tubconiractcr's peHormance vvilt be reviewed

19.5. OHHS tt>aii. et-its discretiofl. review and opprove oQ subconi/sda.

If the Contractor ider\tifies detfoencies or oreos for improvemeru ore identified, the Conlrocto; shaS
toko eorrectrve action.

20. Contract Dennltlons;

20.1. COSTS: Shall mean those direct indrect items of expense determined by the Oepartment
to be ellOweMe and relmourMtjle in occordanco with cosi ono occounrlng principles estobSshed
in eceordonce with strrte end foderot lews, regutetions. rules and orders.

20.2. OEPARTMENT: NH Department o1 HeaBh and Human Services.

20.0. PROPOSAU: If appUcebte, shaD mean the document submitted by iho Contractor on a
form or forms required by (he Oepanment ond containing a description of the senrlces and/or
goods to provided by the Coniroctor In accordance with iho terms and corttftions of the
Contract er^ setting loAh the total cost er\d sources ol revenue for each aervica to be provided
under the Contract.

20.4. UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to erigible IndHrkfuals hereunder. shdO
mean that period of time or (hat specified activity determined by (he Department end ipedfled
in Exhibit e of the Contract.

20.5. federal/state LAW: Wherever federal or slate taws, regvletiorts. rvies. orders, and
potides, etc. are referred to in the Coni/ect. the said reference shall be deemed to mean
at) such laws, regulaiions. etc. as they may be emended or revised from ibno to lime.

20.6. SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: Funds provided to (he Contractor under thb
Contract win not supplani any existirtg federal funds available for these services.

CtfAriC-SpedatPFOKtitom Cartfin» irtam
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REVISIQNS TO STANDARD CONTHACT LANGUAGg

1. Revisions to Form General Provisions

Seetlw4 CcndilicnalNetureolAarMmeni.isrepiacedosfonows:

4. CONDITiONAt NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwllhstof^ng any provision of tTiis AgrecWienl to Ihe cortfary. oD obiipatloni of iho SiatO
heroundcr. tndudirig without rimltoiion, the conllnudnce of payments, in whole or in pen.
under ihis Agreement are contingent upon continued epprcprialion or avaflablDty of funds.
lAcrutflng orty eut>soquent changes 10 (ho opproprletlon or ovoilabUiiy of funds effected by
any etalo or federal legislative or executive action thai reduces, elirninates. or otherwise
modifies the epproprlaUon or owoIiaWlty of furvJing for this Agreement ond the Scope of
Services provided in Eithibil A. Scope of.Services. In whole or in pan. In no eveni thaU tha
Stale be liable lor any payments hcreunder In excess of opproprlated or available funds, in
the event of o reduction, (ermirtallon or modification of oppropriated or availablo furtds, Ihe
Slate shall have the right to xviihhold payment-until such fxmds become available. If ever.
The Slate shall hove the right to reduce, termlnale or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, lermhalron or
modification. Tno State snati nd be required to iransfer funds from any other source or
accoimi Into the Accouit(s) idenUfied in biocli 1.6. of iho General Provisions. Account
Number, or any other occount in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

1.2. Section 10. Tgrmiftatlon. is amended by adding the following language:

tO.f The State may termlnale the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion ol
Ihe State. 30 days after (^ing the Ccni/actoi written rtotice that the Stale Is exerdsirig Us
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 in Ihe even! of eerty lerrTunaiion, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notlco of earfy
termlnaiion. daveic^ and submit to the Stale a .Transition Plan for services ur*der the
Agreement. Inclining but r*jt limited to. Wentifybig the present end future needs of clients
receding services under the Agreement end establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shaO futly cooperate with ihe State and shall promptly provide oaiaiJod
Information to support the Transition Plan Irtduding. but not limited to. any cnformation or
data requested by the Stale related to the termination of the Agreemerrt aruj Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoir^g communication and rovhions ol the Transition Plan to the State
as requested.

lO.e tn the event that services under the Agreemeni. indudlr>g but riot United to cfienis receiving
services under the Agreement are tiansliioned to having services delrvered by another
entity IrKludtng contracted provldefs or the Stale, the Contractor shall provide a process for
urdntemrpled deOvery of services In tl* Traruitton Plan.

10.5 Trie Contrector shell establish a msiTtod of notifytf>g cfienta and other affected Individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall indude the proposed communicatiOAS In Us
Trsnsilion Plan submined to the State as described above.

2. Renewal

2.1. Ttw Oepanmcni reserves the rtghi to extend i«s agreement (or up to two (2) additional years.
comir>gont upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, written ogreement of the
parties arid opprovel of the Governor and Executive Council.

£«NdlC-l-Rtvtslo\s/ExccpeoroloSl«nOftdC«rOKtL«rgu9ee Connov W^b
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«... . -J . nab»^* Z'l •
0ut>*OO90iii paot'Oii --



OocuSign Envelope ID; 977C710A-9948-4676-AAFF-E509CFBD102E

OocuSign Envelope ID: 02F47Se2-60D»^6E7.ASSi-D880$E452227

Now Momfiihlr# OoMrtfucnt of MeoU.h ynd Humjn Services
EinibltO

CERTIFICATION REQAROING QRUG-FREE WORKPLACE ReOUlREMENTS

The Vendor Wenilfied In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees lo comply wiih ihe provisions of
Sections Sl5i-5l60of the Drug-Free WorHplacB Ad of 19M (Pub. L. t0M90. Tiile V. Subtitle 0:41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.). end further agrees to have the Contractor's represemailve. as identified in Sections1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following CerWcation:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDJV10UAl,S

US DEPARTfilENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF. EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

This cerfiftcation is required by the regulalions implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-FreeWorlipiaceActofie68(Pub.L. l0<«90.TWeV.SuWilteO;4ru.S.C,70iet$eQ.). The January 31.
1089 regulations were amended and published as Pan ll of ihe May 25,1990 Fedcfol Register (pages
21661-21691). and require certWtcallon by grantees (and by inferervo. sub-grantees end sub-
conlrDCtors) prior to oward. thai they win maintain a drug-free workplace. Section30t7.e30(c)oflhe
reoulaiion provides that e grantee (and by Werencc. sub-graniees and sub-conuaciors) that is a Slete
may elect to moke one certification lo the Department in each federal fiscal year In lieu of certWcolef for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by tho certificatioa' The certificate set out beiowis a
material represenlalion of fact upon vd^^ch refiance 1$ placed vmen the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violallon of the certifrcaUon shaU be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of granls. or government v.«e suspension or dcbarmcnt. Contractors using this form should
tend it lo: j

Commissioner

r^H Department of Hcollh and Human Servlcos
129 Pieasanl Street.
Concord. NH03301-650S

1. The grantee certifies lhat il win or wtl) continue to' provide a drug-free workplace by:
11 PuWishlr\g e statement r>ottfylng employees that the unlawful marurfacture. distribution,

dispensing possession or use of a ccntroOed substance is prohibiied tn the grantee's
workplace end specifying the actions that wJl be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition: . .. ..

1.2. Establishlr»g an ongoing drug-free avrareness program lo inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse In tho workplace;
t.2.2.. The grantee's poficy of maintaining 0 drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling. rehaWlilation. ond employee assistance programs; af>d
Vie. Tha penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring In the workplice;

1.3. Making It 0 reqiJrement that each employed to ba engaged in the pertormanca of the grant be
cwen a copy of the slatemenl required by paragraph (a);

1.4. Notifyjr>9 the employee l/« the slalement required by paragraph (a) lhat. as o condition of
employment under the granL the employeo vrtll
1.4.1. Abide by (he temis of the statement; and
1 4!2! Notify the employei inwrillng of his or her conviction for a violation of a chminai drug

slatute occurring in the workplace no later than five caiertdar days after such
cor^vlclion;

1 6 Notifylno the agency in wrilmg. rUlhin ten caleryJar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from en empioyee or otherwise receiving actual netico of such conviction.
Employers of conwiclcd employees must provide nor<e. including position lilte, to every grant
ofTccr on whose grant actWiy the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

EjtKbdO-CtnineaOonfeainfngO'vqFff* veiMjerirtisnL^ilQS—
WotpTKtt Rtqiiromervu ^ fj rCi
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has designated a central point for (he receipt cl such notices. Notice shaO Include the
ider^lirication numt)er(f) of each affected grant;

t.6. TatOngone ofthe foilowfng actions, wtthln 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
sutparsgraph 1.4.2. wlih respect to ony employee who h so oonvicted
1.6.1. TeUng eppropHaiepersonnel action agt^sl such an employee, up to endindudirig

termination, contisteni with me requirements of the Rehabilitation Ad of 1973. as
emended;or

1.6.2. ftequ'tfiAQ such employee to pankipaie aatisreclortly in a drug abuse assistance or
rehat>iBiai)On program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local healih,
taw enforcement, or olhe' opproprtota oge<ney;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free wortipioca through
imptemeruation of parag'aphs i.i. 1.2.1.3.1.4. I.S. and 1.6.

2. The grantee may Insert (n the space provided below the sitefs) for me performance of woft done in
connection with (he spedTic grant.

Place cl Performance (street address, city, couniy. lUte. zip code) (list each location)

Check □ If there are workplaces on Cle mat are not ldentif«d here.

Vendor Name:

oale Name: //.

euo*o»i«r» Psoe2<"

UVOSEtfttf) 0 - CeniOcsdon rvcsrOng Drug Pree VeWv WiUb ^
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CERTlFiCATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Ver^. idenUfied in Section of (he GencaJ Provisions agrees to comply with the provlsiono of
Section 318 of Public Lew 10l-12i. Gove'mmeni v»ide Guidonce for New Reithcliona on Lobbying, end
31 U.S.C. 1332. and further agrees to have (he Contractor'o represenialive. esider>til1edln Sections i.ll
and 1.12 of (he General Provisions execute ihe fol)owir>g Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OP HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OP eOUCATION • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

Programs OnOicaie eppUcove progrem covered):
Temporery Atsitience le Needy FemDiei under Tide IV'A
•Child Support\EnfofccmeiW Program under Tllle IV-D /
•Soclel Services Block Grant Program under Title XX ^
•MedieaW Program under THIe XIX
•Community Services Block Grarrt under Title VI
•Chad Cere .Oevelopmeni Block Grant under Title IV

The under*igr>ed certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge end belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or witi be paid by or on behail of the undersigned, to
any person for Inftuendng or eltcmplmg to influence en officer or employoe of any agency, o Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Cor>gress. or an employee of a Member of Congress m
connection with the owartSing of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modiftcation of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any furtds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or wfll bo paid to any person for
influencing or eRempling to Influence an officer or emdoyee of any agency, o Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress. O' on employee of a Member of Congress In connection with this
Federal contract. granL loan, or cooperaliva agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sut^
contractor), the undersigned shail compfete and submit Standard Form LLL. (Disclosure Form to
Repon Lobbying. In accordance wflh its instructions, attached end Identified as Standard Exhrbrt E-l.)

3. The undersigned Shan require that the language of this eeniftcaiion be Iricludcd In tha award
document (or su1>awords at aO tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants. arKf contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperativa agreemer\ts) ar>d thai aO lub-redpienis shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification Is a material repfeseniation of fact upon which reliarKe was placed when this transaction
was made or entered (nto. Submission of this eertlficotlon is o prerequisite for moking or entering into this
lransactlon«mposedbySectiool3S2. Tide 31. U.S. Code. Ar>y person who fails to file the required
certification shoD be subject to o civO penalty of not less than $10.000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such falture.

vendor Name:/U N do* On

9.'2i.n
Oate Nams:

Title:
S c-A^ / /fi.-y^

i/g,

\

9.2f
Etf«i 6 -CcnlOcuW)ReswOlrig LdbbrO>e VenSor IrUits ° ' «
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING OEeARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBIUTV MATTERS

Ttie Vendor idenlirtcd in Section 1.3 of the CcneralProvlslonj ogreei lo comply wlih the provisions of
Eiecutive Of^ of the Pretidenl. Eiecutive Order U$49 and 45 CFR Pon 76 resarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Maners. and further og/ees to have the CorUraetor'a
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.1} of (he Gerterel Provisions execute the foflowing
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and subminlne this proposal (coniraei). the prospective primory participant is providing the
certification set out oelow.

2. The InabiCly of a person to provide the ceitrficatiOA required below wiD not necessaiOy result in deniaJ
of particlpailon in tNs covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective particlparM shall submit an'
ex^nationofwhyilcannoipf'ovidethecertirication. The certificaUon or explenelion will be
ctfisidered In connectlbn w(th the NH Oepadmeni of Health and Human Senrlces' (OHMS)
delerminaUon whether lo enter into this transaction. However. foiKire of the prospecliva prynery
padicipanl to furnish a certificellon or an expfanetion shall (fisqueCfy such person from padidpalion In
this transaction.

3. The certification In this dausa is a material representalion of fact upon which reliance was placed
v<t>en OHKS determined to'enter into this transaction. If U is later determined that the prospective
primaryparti6paAll(r>o««4ngly rendered on erroneous cenifcalion. in addition to other remedies -
available to the Federal Government. OHHS may terminate tMs Uonsection for cause or default.

4. The prospectrva primory participant shaO provide irnmediale wdnen notice lo the DHHS agency .10
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted (f ol any lime (he prospective primary partidpani teams
thai its certfication was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
clrcumtiances.

5. The terms 'covered'transaction.* 'debarred.' 'suspended.* 'ineligible.* 'lower tier covered
transaction,* 'participant,* 'person,* 'primary covered transaction,* 'prtrK/pal,* 'proposal.* and.
'voitmtarily excluded.' as used In this clause, have the meanings sel out in the Oefirtilions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order.l2S49: 4$ CFR Part 76. Sea the
ottached definitioru.

6. The prospective primary poAicIpdni agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that. sh<^d the
proposed covered transaclion be enlered into; it shall hot knowingly enter inio any lov«r her covered
(rartsaction vwth s person who Is debarred. sutpervJed, declared Ineligible, or volunlarily excluded
from psrticipaiion in this.covered ironsacUon, unless authorized by OHHS.

7. The prospective primary partltfpant further agrees by subminir>g this proposal that it will Indude the
dause titled *Certiricatlon.Regard>ng Oebarment. Suspension. Inedgibtllty ond Vodmtary ExdusJon •
lower Tier Covered Trtnsections.* provided by OHHS. without modiTication. in all lower Her covered
transactions ond Irt ell solidtations lor lower tier covered trerxsactions.

6. A partldpant in o covered transaction rnay rely upon a certification of a prospective partidpant in a
lower tier covered transaction that Q is f»l debarred, suspended. inellgiWe. or Invofunlarify excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification Is enorteou). A partidpent may
decide the method end freguerKy by which it determines the etigibiCty of ilt prtncipals. Eoch
partidpani may. but is net required to. check the Nonprocuremenl List (of excluded parlies).

9. Nothing oonielr^ed In the foregoing shell be construed lo require etiattishmertl of a system of records
in order to rervder In good faith the certificalion required by this dause. The knowledge ar^d

CtfAO f - CcrUflcaflM Reqvtflne Oeaainim. Suapcniion VewioiliViirii^JVlS
rv4 0(herRe«acnibatyMinm ^ .a
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(nformation of a participant b not required to exceed thai which b normally possessed by e prudent
person In (he ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except tv iransadions oulhoriied under paragraph 6 of (hese instrvetens. if o participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower Uer covered transaction with a person who is
-suspendfd. debarred, tnefigibte. or votuntarily excluded from parUdpation In this transaction. In
oddition to other remedies available to (he Federal government. OHHS may tenmir\aie this transaction
for cause or defauli.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospocitvo primorv panidponi certffies to the best of ils knowledge ond belief, thai It end hs

pdndpats;
11.1. ore not presently debened. susper^ed. proposed for deborment. declared ir^etigitiie. or

voluntarily excfvded frorh covered transactions by any Federal department or agency; ■
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding (Ms propose} (contract) been convicted of or had

0 dvD judgment render^ against them tor commission of.fraxM or a crimlnDt offense In
connection wtlh oblalr^, attempUr^g to obtain, or performing a public (Federal. State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public Iransaction', violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezatemeni. theft, forgery, bribery, falsiricalion or destaiction of
records, making falsa statements, or receiving stolen property;

1 V.3. ore not presently Indicted for otherwise c/iminalty or dvilly charged by a governmental enlily
(Federal. State or locaO with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (t)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not wQMn a (Mea-year period preceding this opplicaiiori/pfoposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or deleutL

17. Where the prospective pruhBry partidpeni is unabio to cenify to any of the statemenis in tMs
certification, such prospective participant ahall aQach on exdanetion to this prox&ol (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and aubmining this lower tier proposol (contract), the prospective lower ll^ portidpanl. as

defined In 4S CFR Part 76. certifies to the best of its knovVedge and betiaf thai it end'Its principals:
13.V ore not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, dedared ineligible, or

votunterily excluded from partcipalion in ihb irensectlon by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prosxctive lower tier pariidpant is unable to certify to any of the aXve, such

prospective partidpant shaQ attach an explanalionto (his propose! (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier partidpant further agrees by submitting this propose! (contract) that it wiO
indude tNs clause eniided 'Certification Regarding Oebarmeni. Suspension. Ineligibilily. end..
Voluntary Exclusion • Lower Tier Covered Transactions.' without m^tficdtion In all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solidiabons for lower tier covered transactions.

Vendor Name:/\y^ ^OcAA'Oa '

Dal# Name: leS
Title: .

Ejtfr&e F - Cota^C*! Re9»«!no Oebimnrt. Suipemton Ven()«Wl)«li
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NOWDISCRIMINATlOM. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
•  WHISTLEBL0W6R PROTECTIONS

T7>o Vendor IdenUfied In Section 1.3 of t7»e Generet P/ovisions egrees by signetum of the Contr8€io''s ■
represeniative M Idemrtied in Sedlons l.ii end i.i2of iho Genefal Provlitons. lo execwtc ihe (oHowing
certiAcalion:

vendor eom>y. end wQl require orry subgrentees or subcontrociors lo comply, wlin ony applicobie •
federot nontfiscdminallon requirements, which may

.  the OfTvilbua CHme Conlrol end Safe Sirceti Ad of 1968 (<2 U.S.C. Section 37890) which prohlWs
redpients ol lederel funding under iNs statute from discriminating, either in emptoymeni practices or In
the delivery of services or benefits, on the besis oi roce. color, religion, noilonal or13l^ ono $e*. The Aa
requires certain recipicnls lo produce an Equal Emptoyment Opportunlly Plan;

• iha Juvenile Jwslica Delinquency Prevention Ad of 2002 (42 tJ.S.C. Section &672(b)) which adopts by
reterenca. the dvU rights obligations of the Sate Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
sialuje are prohibiied from dlscrtmlnating. either In employment pradices or In ihe delivery oi services or
berwfitt, on .the basis of.raca, color, religion, notional origin, and sex. The Ad Includes GquiJ
Employment Opportuniiy Plan requirements;

. 1^ civi Rights Ad of 1SS4 (42 U.S.C. Sedion 20008. which prohibits recipienis of t^eral rmancial
assistance from dischminating on the basis ol face, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

. Ihe RehadlitaUon Act ol 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794). which piohtWls redpients of Federal financial
essUtanca from discrtmlnating on Ihe basis of disabtliiy. in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or beneftls. in any program or activity;

.'the Ameftcans with OisablDlies Ad of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sccliona 12131-J4). which prohibits
discrtminaiion end ensures equal opportunlly for persons with disabliilios In cmpioymcnt. State and local
government services, pubik eccommodai/ons. commerdai faciliiiei. and transportalion;

■ iho'Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections l66l, 1M3.166S-(16). ymich prohibits
discrimination on tt>e basH of sex in (ederafly assisted education pfograms;

. the Age Oiscrtmlnation Act of 197$ (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07). vmich prohlbH# discdmlnalion on the
basis ol age In programs or ectiviiles receiving Fede/el financial assistance. Il does not include
employment discrimlr\alion;

• 26 C.F.R. pL 31 (U.S. Deportment of Justice Regulations - OJJOP Grant Programs); 20 C.F.R. pi. 42
(U S Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrtmination; Equal Employmonl Opportuniiy; Pofcios
and Procedures): Executivo Order No. 13279 (equal protection of fhe laws for faith-based and community
orgenizaiions): Executive Order No. 13559. which provide fyndameniai phndpies end policy-making
criteria for partner^ips iMth fahh-based and n^ghborhood crganUatlons;

- 20 C F R pi 36 (U.S. Department of Justice Regutailons - Equal Treatmeni for Failh-Based
OrganiiBiions)- and WhlsilcWower protections <i U.S.C. §47i2 and The Naitonal Defense Aulhoriialion
Ad (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, er«aed January 2. 2013) tno Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contmct Employee WhlsUebiower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal foi certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grams and conlracls.

The ccrtificaie sel oui bdow is e malertai representation of fact upor> which reliance is placed when the
agency awards ihe graru. False ccrtificaiion or vtoiaiion of ihe certification shall be grounds for
{suspension of paymenii. suspension or lerminalion of grenls. or government wtde suspcnston or
debarment.

EiNthC
VtrCor IhUsh ̂
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In (he event e Federel or Slate court or FeOeral or State adminiatralive agency mokes a rmding-of
aisertmlnstion fitter a Due process heartng on the grouhds of raco. color, religion, national orrgin, or mx
sgair^sl a reclpteni of funds, the recipient wvtii forward a copy of the finding to the Office for CIvU Rights, to
ihe appiica&ie contracting ogercy or division wtihin the Department of Health ar>d Human Services, and
to the Department of Keoflh end Human Services O^ce of the Ombudsman.

T?>e Vendor idenfified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by lignetureof the Contractor's
represematlvtt OS Idertitfled In Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of mo General ProvlsioAS. to execute the foSowtng
certification: ' '

I. By Slgnlr>g arvf suOminlrtg this proposal (contract} the Vendor agrees to comply wtth the pmvtsJons
irtdicated ebevo.

VendorName; A/^ <^ori/.*AtVx
Oo»v>e<64-'< SCtf-r't' l/v's

Date Nome:
Tiile; '

,T M. fS'ck^ /lett '

btnac l|i/sr
Vcftdw WUSb V
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Lew tO>227. Pert C • Envlronmentel Tobeao Smohe. eiso known o» |ho Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Afl). requute thai erneking nol ba permined in eny portion of eny indoor fedUty owned or leased or
coAVectedfor by on enlily end oxed routinely orrefldirty for the provision of health, day care, education,
or Dt«ry services lo eWidren under Ihe ego of ifi. If the services vt funded by FedereJ prpgrems either
direcUy or through State or local gDvemmentt, by Federal grpr^i. cor^ract. loar*. or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to cWldren's services provtded In private residences. fodHles funded solely Pv
Medicare or'Mcdicaid hrnds. end portions of fedSties used for inpaUent drug or alcohol ireaimenl. Failure
to comply with the previsions of the law mey result in ihe imposition of a dvH monetary pwaiiy of up to
11000 per day end/or (he imposition of on odminiiuoUvo compeance order on tho rosponslWo entity.

The Vendor Werttifled In Section 1.3 of the GeneraJ Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative at Identified in Section 1.11 end 1.12 of the Generel Provisions, lo execute the following
certification:

t. By signing end lubmifting this conlrect. the Vendor egrees to make reasonebte efforts to comply ̂Ih
alt applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227. Part C. known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

VertdorName: n /'

Date
TWe:

'i.vn U:v^U^.
N.me: ^ ^ „ [. le,&-
Tllld- / ,

ouotemero Psgr*®''

ejtfW>M-C€>tflc*Uonfin»'fllng Vendor WWi
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABIUTY '

ACT BUSINESS ASSOCIATE

AGREEMENT

The Vendor (deniirted in Section i.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards (or Privacy and Security of Individually tdenliriabie Health information. 45
CPR Pads 160 and 164 applittble to business associates. As defined herein. 'Business
Associate* shall mean the Vendor and subcontractors and agents of the Vendor that receive,
use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and 'Covered Entity'
shall mean (he State of New Hampshire. Department ol Health and Human Services.

(1 Pennltlons.

a. 'Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" In section 164.402 of Title 4S.
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. 'Business Associate* has (he meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 46. Code
of Federal Regulations.

C. "Covered Enlitv* has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. 'Desionated Record Set* shall have the same meaning as the term 'designated record set*
m4SCFR Section 184.501.

e. 'Data AaQreQation* shall have the same meaning as the term 'data aggregation* in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. 'Health Care Operations' shall have the same meaning as the term 'health care operations*
ln45CFRSectlon1$4.501.

g. 'HITECH Act* means the Heahh Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act. TitleXIII. Subtiiifi 0. Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. 'HIPAA* means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996. Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privdcy and Security of Individually Identifiable Heatih
Information. 45 CFR Parts 160,162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. 'Individual* shall have (he same meaning as the lenm 'individuar in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall indude a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. 'Privacy Rule' shall mean the Slandards for Privacy of Individually Idenlifkable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164. promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Departmeni of Health and Human Sen^ices.

k. 'Protected Heaiih Information" shall have the same meaning as the term 'protected heallh
tnfonnalion' in 45 CFR Section 160.103, KmHed to the information crealed or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered.Entity.

PotftMSy Ad
QtftlrtcuAiM(Ut«A^c«meAl O lOt
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I. 'Required bv Law* $hall have the same mcaninfl as Ihe term Ve^juired by law* in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. 'Secfetaiv' shaO mean the Secretary of Ihe Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. •Soeuritv Rule* shall mean the Securiry Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Healih Information at 45 CFR Part 164. Subpart C. and amendments thereto.-

0. 'Unsecured Protected Health Inlofmatlon' means protected health information that Is not
secured by a technology slondard ihol renders protected health faiformeiion unueebte,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by ihe American National Standards
Institute.

p. Olher Definitions • AD lerms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
estabiished-under45C.F.R. Parts 160, island 164. as amended from time to time, and the
MITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health (nfofmatior).

a. Business Associate shaQ not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of Ihe Agreement. Further. Business Associate, including but not limited to at!
Its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use. disclose, mainlam or transmit
PH) in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI;
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law. pursuant to the lerms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
HI. For data eggregalion purposes for the health care operations of Covered.

Entity.

c. To (he eirtent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure. (I)
reasonable assurances frorh the third party that such PHI will be held conftdeniiaDy and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (n) an agreement from such ihird party to notify Business
Associate, in accordant^ wiih the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification.
Rules of any breaches of the conftdeniiaiiiy of the PHI, to the extent It has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shaD not. unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disdose any PHI in respbhse to a
request for disclosyre on the basis (hat ti is required by law. wiihoui flrsi notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disdosure end
.to seek appropiiate relief.- if Covered Entity objects to such disdosure, the Business

V70I4 E««an Vender
HeUUilfttvnflCi PensMiiyAci
evUMtt<UiMliie4«rt<ner(
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Associate shall rerrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exfiausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional resihdions and shaD not disdose PHI In violation of
such additional restrictions and shell abide by any additional secuhty safeguards.

f3) ■ ObllQBtlons and Activities of Buslrteas Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer Immedialety
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health inforrriatlon and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shaD Immediaiely perform a risk assessment wt^en It becomes
aware of any of the above siiualions. TM risk assessment shall Include, but not be
limited to:

0  The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the llkefihood of re-identification;

0 The unauthorized person used Ihe protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

0 Aether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
0 The extent to which the risk to (he protected health information has been

mitigaled.

The Business Associate shall comptele the risk assessment within 48 hours of (he
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessn^nl In writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the-Privacy. Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.-

d. Business Associate shall make avallat^e all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to (he use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of delermln'mg Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy ̂ d
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates thai receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and corxjitions on the use arvf disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
Ihe duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (1). The Covered Entity
Shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended busirvess associates, who will be receivirtg PHI

ynt4 * Vmdcr
KtttMntmnct PontbirryAa
eutiAtit AMemeBi iCt
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purxuanl lo this Agfe«nf*nl. with rights of enforcemenl and indemnification from such,
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph 013 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disctosure of
protected health information.

f. Wlhin five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at Its offices all
records, books, agreements, poticies end procedures relating to the use artd disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written roquesl from Covered Entty.
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI In a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity; or as directed by Covered Entity, to an Individual In order to meet the
requirements under 4S CFR Section 1&4.S24.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity fo# an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record

• Set. the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and Incorporate any such amendment lo enable Covered Entity to futfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Sect'ion 164.526.

I. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would*be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
ir\dtvltfual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section'
164.520.

J. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for en accounting of disclosures of PHI. Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such Information as Covered Entity may require lo fulfiD Its obligalions
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.526.

k. In the event any individual requests access to. amendment of. or accounting of RHi
directly from the Bu^ness Associate, ihe Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shtfl have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
indivlduars request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Busirtess
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall Instead respond to the indrviduafs request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. NMlhin ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall rclum or destroy, as speofied by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agrcerrteni. and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction Is nol feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been othcnvise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to emend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make Ihe return or destruction Infeasibie. for so long as Business ^
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Associalo mamtainj soch PHI. If Covered Entity. In Us sole discretion, rcqurfcs that the
Business Associate destroy any or oil PHI. the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obllaatlons of Covered Entity

8. Covered Emily shall notify' Business Associate of any changes or limitatioo(6) In Its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 4S CPP Section
1 $4.S30. to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Assodate'e
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shoU promptly notify Business Associate of eny changes In. or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individusis whose PHI may be used or
disdosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 4S CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Sedion 164.506.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Assodaie of any restriclions on the use or
d'rsdosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and coodilions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Assodaie
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered En^ty may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Assodaie to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definiiioos and Reiaulatofv References. All terrris used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms In the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from lime to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit i. to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Assodaie agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from t'lme to time as Is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply wilh the changes In the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable tedergi and slate law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that It has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The panies agree thai any ambiguity In the Agreement .shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule. '
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SgQfeQaliQn. If any (enm or condition of this Exhibit I Of ihe application ihercof to any
person(s) or tiroumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions wh^ can be given effect wiihout the invalid term or condftion; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Sufvivat. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI. return or
destruction of phi. extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) i. the
defense and indemnificaUon provisions of section (3) e end Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms ond conditions (P-37). shall survive the termination of the Agreernent.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duty executed this Exhibit I.

Oepartmcni of Meatth and Human Services lA e I a-\^Ca~^
The Slate _ Name of the Vendor .

A
Signature of Authorized Representative

^ 4-^x
»lame o>AeName o>Aethorized Pepreseniailve

Title of Authorized Representative

Dale'

Signature of Aulhori^ Representative '
Z-yn . Sc. / /c- f~h
Name of Authorized Representative

Title of Authorized Representative

Date
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ePRTlFICATIQN REGARDlWQ THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTASlllTY AND TRANSPAREHCjf
^  ACT tFFATAI COMPUANCe ^

The Fede/dl Funding AccouftlebiJlly end Tronjparency AcJ (FFATA) toRiifei prime ewerdees ot indWduel •
Federal fl»ertfs equei lo or greolcr ihon 125,000 and owardod on or efter Ooober t. 20i0. to report on
data reieled to eieculive compensalion and essooeled f^sl-Uer sut^jrents ol S25.000 or more. If the
inltJei award is below S2S.OOO but subsequeni grant motfftcaiions result In a total award equal to or over
S25.000. the eward is subject to ll* FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date o7 the award.
In Mordance *dih 2 CFR Port 170 (Reporting Sub»ward and E*ccutive Comperxsatlon Intormalion). the
Oopartmcni of Hastlh oruf Human Sarvlccf (OMMS) must report the foltovrlng Wormalion for any
subawerd or conuaci cward subject to the FFaTA reporting requlremeriii:
1. Name of eruity
2. Amount of oward
3. Furtding agency
4. NAtCS code for conireds / CFOA progrom number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of (he fundirtg ection
7. location of the enl'ty
8. Prlndpie place of performance
9. tMlQue Identifier of the entity (OVJNSff)
to. Total compensation or>d names of the lop five executives if:
' 10.1. More than M% ol annual gross revonuat are from the Federal gpvemmeni. and those

revenues ere greater than S25M annually and
10.2. Compensalltft WomialJon is not already evaiiaWe through reporting to the SEC.

Prime gram redplerxis must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in »mich
the award or award amendment Is made.
The Vendor idenjlfied In Section 1.3 of the Generol Provisions agrees to comply v4lh the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act. PubHc Low 109'282 and Publ< Law 11D'2S2.
ortd 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subeward end Executive Compensation Information), end further agrees
tohavo the Contrector'srepreseniaiive. as identified.ln Sections t.11 and 1.t2 of the General Provisions
execute the todrnving Certirtcabon:
The below named Vendor agrees to provide needed information as ootlir*ed above to tha nh Department
of Health and Human Services end to comply with eD eppfrcaWo provisions of the Federal Financial
AacountabtCty and Transparency Act.

Vendor Name: A//V

y-2' -
S  He

fC-e. t, i- vc.

Cuo«0/ittro

I  IiSAC
J - CeitftciOor Rcotrdng o« Ftotftl Furtftng Vendor (/Vticis ^

AaartjttCh*na*'woportncyAcj(FFATmCwn^*neB a ̂  .Cf
Pogeid) 0«iei_12±Lt '
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FORMA

As the Vendor IdenllfiBd In Sect>on 1.3 of the General Provivons. I certify (hat (he responses to the
below Gsled questioru ore (rve and oecuroie.

1. The OLINS raimbef for vour ehtltv It:

2. lA yovr business or organUaiton's prececSng completed fiscol year, did your business or orgonlaation
receive (i) 60 percent or more of your onnwel gross revenue In U.S. federal coni/octs. aubcont/octs.
loans, grants, sub-graftts. and/or cooperolive ogreemer^ts; and (2) $25,000,000 or more In onnual
gross revenues from U.^. federal comreoi, su^onirscis. loons, grants, subgrants. and/or

. cooperative ogreements?

NO YES

If the answer to 02 obpye is NO. stop here

It the answer to 02 above is YES. please ortjwer the foOowlr>g:

3. Does the public have access to Informallon about the compensation of the executives In your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(d) or 15(d] of the Securities
Exchange Act of. 1934 (t 5 U.$.C.7em(o). 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
19867

NO YES

If the answer to 03 above Is YES, stop here

If the answer to 03 above Is NO, please answer (he following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization ere as foSows:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amounl:

Amount:

Amount;

Amounl:

Amounl:

OuOvC/Horu

'  J - CcnZludan RcgvtSna me Frocnri Fw^OIng
AeeotniUtry A/id Tramp nney Ad (ffATA) Cffrx^Unc*

PegiZd}
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DHHS tnformatlon-Security Requirements

Definitions

The foflowing terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. 'Breach* means the toss of coni/oi. compromise. unauihorUed disctoiure.
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term refcnlng to
situailons where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or poieniiat access to persor^ify IdentiHatiie
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information.' Breach* shall have the same meaning as the term 'Breach* in seoion
164.402 of Title 4S. Code of Federal Regulations.

2. 'Computer Security incidenl* shall have the same meaning 'Computer Security
Ir^cideni* in section two (2) of NlST PubHcation 600-61, Computer Security InciderM
Handling Guide. National Institute of Standards and Technology. U.S. Departmer^
of Commerce.

3. •ConRdential Inlormalton" or •Confidential Data' means aB confidenliai information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, fioanciai. public
assistance benefits end personal information tnduding without limitdtion, Substance
Abuse Tfcatmenl Records. Case Records. Protected Health information and
Personally Idenliridble Information.

Confidential information also includes any and ell Information ownad or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Heallh and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which coUeciion. disdosure. protection, and disposition Is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but .Is not limited to
Protected Hearth information (PHO. Personal Information (PI). Personal Financial
Information (PFl). Federal Tax Information (FTI). Sodal Security Numbers (SSN).
Payment Card industry (PCt). and or other sensitive end confidential information.

4. "End User* "means any person or entity (e.g.. contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the tcnns of this Contract.

5. 'KIPAA'means the Health Insurance Portabilify and Accountability Ad of 1936 arto the
regulations promulgated thereurtoei.

6. 'Incident* mearw an act that potentially violates an explicit or ImpSed security policy,
which Includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain onauihorizcd access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data: and changes to system her^are.
firmware, or software charactcrisllcs without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent, incidents Include the loss of data through theft or device mispiacemcnl. loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, end misroulir*g of phys'rcal or etedron'ic

vs. towns Ccrt/ieia mwj
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mad. all of which may have (he potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use. disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. 'Open W/eless Network' means any network or seflment of a network that Is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Oepamnent of lnrorTT>atiar>
Technology or delegate as a protectad nahA^rk (desigr^ed. tested, artd
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be corvsldered an oper>
network artd r>ot adequately secure (or the transm'ission of unencrypted PI. PPI.
PHI or confidenUal OHHS data.

8. 'Personal Irrformation* (or 'PI") means information which can be used to dislingursh
or trace an indivkfuars idenlity. such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined In New Hampshire RSA 359-C:l9. biomet/lc records, etc..
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying Information which Is linked
Of linkable to a specific individual, such as dale .and place of birth, mother's maiden
name. etc.

9. 'Privacy Rule' shall mearvthe Standards for Privacy of Individudlly Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164. promulgaled under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. 'Protected Heaflh Information" (or 'PHI*) has Ihe same meaning as provided In the
definition of "Protected Health information* in Ihe HIPAA Privacy Rule af45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. 'Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected HeaKh Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164. Subpart C, and amendments
thereto. ■

12. 'Unsecured Protected Health Information' means Protected Health Information that is
not secured by a technology standard lhat renders Protected Health inlormalion
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and Is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organlzaiion lhat Is accrediied by
the American National Standards institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF OHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Oisdosure of Conftdeniial information.

1. The Contractor musl not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Inforrnalion
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further. Contractor,
including but not limited tp all its directors, officers, employees and agents, musl not
use. disclose, maintain or transmii.PHI in any manner thai wpuW constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response (o a

vs. CMi lOXS'lft
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request for disclosure on the basis that H is required by law. in response to a
subpoena, etc...without first notifying OHHS so that OHMS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

' 3. If OHHS Potiriec the Contractor (hat OHHS has agreed (o be bound by additional
restrtciions over and above (hose uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PH)
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and* must not disclose PHi In violation of such additional
restriction^ ond mual abide by any additional aecuriry soteguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that OHHS Data or derivailve there from disciosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the iemns of this Contract.

5. The Contractor egrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contrad may not be t/sed for
any other pxrrposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatrves
of DHHS for the purpose of Inspe^ing to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

IK METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA
/

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting OHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyt>er security ar>d that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure sewre transmission via the Internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Oevrces. End User may not use computer disks
Of portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of iransrWtting OHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may onfy employ email to irarTsmil Confidcntia) Oala if
email is encrypted arxJ being sent (o and being received by email addresses Of

' persons authcwlzed to receive such informailon.

4. Encrypted web Site, if End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidcnila!
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site most be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hostii^g .Sendees, also known as File Sharir»9 Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Oropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Oaia.

6. Grourtd Mail Service. End User may only transmit Conftdenlial Data via cert//7ed ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

■ 7. Laptops and PDA. if End User Is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Oala said devices must be encrypted and password-protectcd.

0., Open Wrcless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open

V5.uiiupd«tti(»4n#
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wireless networV. End User must employ e virtual private networi* (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless networV.

©. Remote User Communicalion. If End User is employing remote communicatior* to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(8) or laptop from which Information will be
trartsmitted or accessed.

10 SSH Pile Transfer Protocol (SPTP). also known as Secure Pile Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data. End user wiU
stmclure the Folder and access privileges to prevent Inappropriate disciosure of
information. SFTP folders, arvj sub-loWcrs used for transmrtting Confidential Data wBl
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cyde (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices, if End User is trartsmining Confidcniiai Data via wireless devices, ell
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

111. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Conlrador will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative In whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
urvlcr this Contract. To this end. the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees It will not store, transfer or process data collected In
connection wfih the services rendered under this Contract outside of the Unhed
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply m the imptemenlation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locaiions.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are In
place to detect potential security events that can impact Stale of NH systems
and/or Department'confidential Information for conlracJor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and ̂ ucalion for its End
Users In support of protecting Department confidential Information.

4. The Contraclof agrees to retain all electronic end hard copies of Confidential Data
In a secure location and identified in scction IV. A.2

.  ■ 5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HiTECH compliant solution and comply with all appBcabte statutes and
regulations regarding ihe privacy and security. AH servers and devices rhust have
currenUy-suppoited and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anit-
hacker, anii-spam. anii-spyware. and anli-matware utifities. The environment, as a

VJ UU...... IKWH "«.'K ■ C«r.a..«ua
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vmole. must have aggressive inin/siorvdelection and firewaii protection.

6. The Contractor agrees lo and ensures its complete cooperation vviih ihc Slate's
. Chief Informaliort Officer in the detection of any security vuineraWity of the hosUng
infrastructure.

8. DIsposUlon

1. If the Contractor, v*tD maintain any Confidential information on Us systems (or Us
sub-contractor systems). the Contractor will mainialn a documer^tcd process for
securely disposing of such dala upon request or contract termination; arnf wiD
obtain wrinen cerltficalion for any Stale of New Hampshire daia destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of or^ioing. emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use. electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for exarnpie.
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 800-68. Rev 1, Guldclir>es
(or fvtedia Sanitization. National Inslilute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Conlrador will document end certify in wrtjlng at
time of the dala destmction. and will provide written certificalioh to the Depdrtn>enl
upon request. The written certification win Include ad details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and vaWaled. Where oppllMble.
regulatory and professional standards for •retention requiremenls will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Conuactor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy atl hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination ol this •
Contract, Contractor agrees lo completely destroy all clecironic Confidenilai Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR security

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows;

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department'
confidential Information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor wiU maintain policies and procedures lo protect Department
confidential information throughout the Information lifecycle. where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use. storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape. disk, paper, etc.).

v5.uu,««r..»w.i "W'"
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3. The COJiUactor will maintain appropriate euihentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Oepaitrhent.conrideniiai information
v^ere applicable.

4. The Contractor wtfl ensure proper security m.onltoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Oeparlment coniidenlia) information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor vnii provide regular security awareness and education for Its End
Users in support of protecting Department conOdentlal Information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for Slate of New Hampshire, the Contractor wDr maintain a
program of an Internal process or Accesses that defines specific security
expectations, and moniiorng compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match (hose for the Contractor, tnduding breach notrfscation requirements.

7. The Contractor wBi work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of N^ Hampshire and Department system access end authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as pan of
obtaining arid mdint3inir>g access to any .Department syslem(s). Agreements vmI) be
completed and signed by (he Contractor and any' applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authortzed.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103. the Contractor wiD execute a HiPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Departmont and is responsible for mainlaining compliance wilh the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at Us request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will'be completed
annually, or an allernale time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Departmer^t may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department end the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingty, any State of New Hampshire
or Oepartmeni data offshore or ouiskie the boundaries of the United Stales unless
prior express written consent Is obtained from the Information Security Office

'  leadership member within the Department.,

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any securiiy breach Contractor shall
make efforts to Investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The Stale shati recover from (he Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach, iriduding Iwl not Bmiied lo: aedh monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs assodaled with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12 Contractor must, comply with s9 applicable stetutes and regutetions regarding the
privacy ar>d security of Confidenilai Information, and must In all olher respects
molnloln the prlvocy end security of PI ond PHI at a level end ecope thai is not tcsa
than the level and scope of requirements applicable lo federal agencies, incfuding.
but not Umlted to. provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 5528). DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b). HiPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) thai govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under Slate law.

13. Contractor agrees lo establish and maintain appropriate admlnislrattve. technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and lo
preveni unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requifemenis
established by the State of New Hampshire. Department of information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doitNendorfindex.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, end
procurement Information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor egriees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
•  response process. The Contractor will notify the Stale's Privacy Officer and the

Slate's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confideniiaJ Information breach, computer
security IncidcnI. or suspected breach which effects or includes any Slate of New
Hampshire systems thai conned lo the State of New Hampshire networt.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under ihis
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection wilh purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure thai ell End Users:

a. comply wilh such safeguards as reicrenced In Sedion IV A. obove.
Implemented to prolcci Confidential Information that Is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent di^losure.

b. safeguard this information at an limes.

t ensure fhat laptops and other eiccl/onic devices/media containing PH). PI. or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send ema'iis conia'ming Conrideniia) Information only If encrypted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.
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e. liml) disclosure of the Conndenlial information to the extent permlned by law.

f. Confidefttial Info/mallon received under this Contract and Individually
identifiable data derived from OHHS Data, must be stored in an area ihdt is
physically and technologically secure from access by unautnonxed persona
duHng duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g.. door locks, card keys,
btometrtc Idonlirtors. etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Conndenlial Data, Including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable informaiion. and in afl cases,
such data must be er^crypted at all times vrhen in transit, at rest, or mtien
stored on portable media as required in secl'ion IV above.

h. in at) other .instances Ccnrdential Data must be maintained, used end
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by o risk-based
assessment of the circumsUnces involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not-be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential' information secure.
This applies to credcniiais used to access the site directly or lr>directly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. OHHS
reserves the hghi to cor>duct onsiie inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, induing the privacy and security requirements provided in herein. HlPAA.
and other applicable laws and Federal reguiailons until such time the Confidential Data'
is disposed of In accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTXNC

The Contractor must rKtify the Stale's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the err\ail addresses provided In
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with ihe agency's dKotnsntod Incident Handling and Breach Notiftcalion
procedures and in acoordsnce with 42 C.F.R.'§$ 43t.300 • 306. in addition to. and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all appGcabie obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures musi also address how Ihe Conlracior wHl:

1. Identify inddents;

2. Oelermine if personalty tdentifiabfe infomiation is invotved In incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify end convene a core response group to deiermino the risk level of Incidents
and delern^e risk-based responses to incidents; and
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5 Determine wtiethcr Breach notification, is required, and. rf so. KJenlify api^oprlaie
Breach notification methods, timiftg. source, end contents from among differeni
options, and .bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any miugaiion
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate Pi must be addressed and reported, as
eppticaWe. in accordance with NH RSA 359-C;20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:
0HHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

6. OHHS Se.curlty Officer:
OHHSlnlormationSecurityOifficc@dhhs.nh.flOv
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